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iMDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of Volkswagen Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Volkswagen Finance
Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow
Staternent and the Statement of Changes in Eguity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
zforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
A1, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in
zguity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

e conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Stendards are further described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
~eguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
ihese requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
si.ificient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone ind AS financial
statermnents.

Zrmphasis of Matter

W= draw attention to Note 46 of these standaione Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
management’s assessment of the impact of uncertainty caused due to the COVID-19 pandemic and its
mnsequentlai effects which could impact the Company's estimates of 1mpairment of loans to customers.
Cur opinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
awdit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These
matlers were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
centext.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone ind AS financial statements.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

{(a) Impairment of financial assets {expected credit losses)
{as described in Note 5 of the standalone ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide
for impairment of its loans (designated at
amortised cost) using the expected credit loss
{ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on  financial
instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about
past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could
impact the credit quality of the Company's
loans and advances and investments.

in the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management, including but not limited to the
following matters: ‘

e Staging of financial assets (i.e.
classification in ‘significant increase in
credit  risk”  ("SICR") and ‘default’
categories);

e Grouping of the loan portfolic under
homogenous pools in order to determine
probability of default on a collective basis;

e Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default;

» Estimation of management overlay for
macro-economic  factors which could
impact the credit quality of the loans.

Additional considerations on account of
COViID-19

Considering the evolving nature of the COVID-
18 pandemic, which has continued to impact
the Company's business operations, resuiting
in higher loan losses, the Company has
maintained a management overlay of Rs. 1000
lakhs as part of its ECL, to reflect among other
things the increased risk of deterioration in
macro-economiic factors. Given the unigue
nature of the pandemic and the extent of its

e Read and assessed the Company's accounting
policy for impairment of financial assets and its
compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors
pursuant to Reserve Bank of India guidelines
issued on March 13, 2020.

o Read and assessed the Company's policy with
respect to moratorium pursuant to the RBI
circular and tested the implementation of such
policy on a sample basis.

» Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status tc check compliance with
requirements of Ind AS 109. Tested samples for
staging of loans based on their past-due status to
check compliance with requirements of Ind AS
109.

e Tested the assumptions used by the Company for
grouping and staging of loan portfolic into
various categories and default buckets for
determining the PD and LGD rates. Tested the
input data used for determining the PD and LGD
rates and agreed the data with the underiying
books of accounts and records.

e Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors (including COVID-19 pandemic).

o Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

s Assessed disclosures included in the standalone

iInd AS financial statements in respect of
expected credit losses including the specific
disclosures made with regards to the impact
COVID-19 on ECL estimation.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

economic impact which depends on future
developments including governmental and
regulatory measures and the Company’s
responses thereto, the actual credit loss can
be different than that being estimated,

in view of such high degree of management's
Jjudgement involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic and
related events, it is a key audit matter.

IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting | We performed the following procedures for testing
systems of the Company are fundamentally | IT general controls and for assessing the reliability
reliant on IT systems and IT controls to process | of electronic data processing, assisted by
significant transaction volumes. Automated | specialized IT auditors:

accounting proc edures and IT environment | The aspects covered in the |IT Genera! Control
comtrols, which include IT governance, general audit were () User Access Management (i
IT controls over Program Change Management (iii) Other related
program development and changes, access to ITGCs - to understand the design and test the

programs and data a nd IT operations, are operating effectiveness of such controls;
reqguired to be designed and to operate

gffectively to ensure accurate financial

. e Assessed the changes that were made to the key
reporting.

systems during the audit period and assessing

. changes that have impact on financial reporting:
Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and g P P g

complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general IT controis and the
agplication controls specific to the accounting
and preparation of the financial information is
considered to be a key audit matter.

e Tested the periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

o Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls wherever applicable} on
the IT application controls and IT dependent
manual controls in the system.

o Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls, where deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the

] scope of our substantive audit procedures.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

{Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the cther information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standaione Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materiaily
inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this cther information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash fiows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with [the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Jjudgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

COur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

éf%@ .~ one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
e misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

- kvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial
year ended March 37, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {(Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

P

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statemert of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

id} Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amendad;

je} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act;

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind
AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure 2” to this report;

{g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021;

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 17 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rulés, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

ifii.  There were no amounts which were reguirad to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Merrbership Number: 102102
UDIM: 21102102AAAAMMG326
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 28, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “"Report on other legal and reguiatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

(i} (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

{b} Ali fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{c} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties inciuded in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are heid in the
name of the Company.

{in The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the reguirements under
clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

{iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us, the Company has not granted any foans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 183 of
the Companies Act, 201 3. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3({iii}(a), (b} and {c} of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

{iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

{v} The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

{vi} To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

{vil} {a) The Company is reguiar in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it.

{b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

A
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(viii)

{ix)

L)

i)

cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

{c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax and

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount (Rs) Period to which | Forum where the
statute dues the amount | dispute is pending
retates
The central | Service Tax Rs, 5,071.85 | Financial Years | The Customs,
Excise Act, Lakh {Rs. | 2012 -2018 Excise and Service
1944 2,534.088 Tax Appellate
Lakhs paid Tribunal (CESTAT}
under protest.)
The Income | Income Tax Rs. 584.35 | Financial Year | The Commissicner
Tax Act, Lakhs. 2015-2016 and | of Income Tax
1961 2016 -2017 Appeals
The Income | Income Tax Rs. 88.20 | Financial Year | Bombay High
Tax Act, Lakhs {Rs. | 2014 -2015 Court
1961 44 .60  Lakhs
paid under
protest)

in our opinion and-according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank
or government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans/debt instruments were applied for
the purpose for which those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for
immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liguid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the standalone ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and empioyees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule 'V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

in our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii}
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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{xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,

reporting reguirements under clause 3{xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not
commented upon.

{xv}  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with directors as
referred to in section 192 of the Act.

{xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as reguired, under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1834.

For S. R, Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
JCAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 {f) under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory
reguirements” of our report of even date

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Volkswagen Finance Private
Limited (the "Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
praparation of reliable financial informatien, as reguired under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements was estakblished and maintained and if such controis operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financiat
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

ervor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainad is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these

standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone ind
AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company'’s internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS finencial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Standalone ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalcne Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compilance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinicn

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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WYolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

1.1.CORPORATE INFORMATION

Wolkswagen Finance Private Limited (VWFPL} has been incorporated on January 16, 2009, The
Company received NBFC license from the Reserve Bank of india (RBi} on March 17, 2011 and
commenced NBFC business from March 24, 2011. VWFPL is providing retail car financing, dealer
car financing, term loans, used cars financing, operating lease and insurance solutions to the
customers for purchase of VW Group brand vehicles i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda, Audi, Porsche,
Lamborghini, MAN and Scania.

1.2.BASIS OF PREPARATION

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes,
2015 as amended by the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016. The Company has
adopted ind AS from April 01, 2018 with effective transition date of Aprii 01, 2017 and accordingly,
these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in Ind AS, prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act’) read with relevant rules issued there
under and other relevant provision of the act.

The financial statements have been prepared oh a historical cost basis except for:
@ Certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value

¢ Assets held for sale- Measured at fair value less cost to sell.

¢ Defined benefit plans (Employee benefit provisions} — measured at fair value.

B. The finandial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to the financial years presented in the financial
statements. These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on June 28, 2021.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and
assumptions for some items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement
in the Balance sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts realized may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.

Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
I. Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant, equipment
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and
maintenance support.

il. Recognition and Measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
e valuation. Key actuarial asévmptions which form the basis of above valuation includes
%ﬁ%%ﬁzﬁ%% discount rate, trends in salary escalation, demographics and life expectancy. The discount . -
o rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting pericd g,g}” e




Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

I

government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the
probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Further details are disclosed
in note 27.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, depreciation carry-farwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, depreciation carry-forwards and unused
tax credits could he utilized.

. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the reporting date. The actuai outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from
the amount included in other provisions.

. Discounting of long-term financial assets/liabilities

Wi

H

All financial assets/liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
In case of financial assets/liabilities which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price}
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to'items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and velatility. For further details about determination
of fair value please see Note 28.

Business model assessment
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payment of principal and interest {$PPl} and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the
business for which the asset was held. 7




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued)

Vil

Effective Interest Rate {EIR} method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of 2 constant rate of return over the contractual life of
loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle.

. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets
measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the
above financial assets are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of statistical
models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and
their interdependencies such as macroeconomic scenarios and collateral values.

€. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

1.3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interest income on financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using effective
interest method. EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable to
acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset/financial liabiiity to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue is continued to be recognized at the original effective interest rate
applied on the gross carrying amount of assets falling under stages 1 and 2 as against on
amortised cost net of impairment allowance for the assets falling under impairment stage
3.

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate
on a financial asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate. Fees and
commission that are not integral to effective interest rate are recognised on accrual basis
over the life of instrument except for penalty interest income and cther service fee are
recognized when there is reascnable certainty of receiving the same.

Al other fees, commissions and other income and expense are generally recognised on
an accrual basis by reference to compietion of the specific transaction assessed based on
the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

The Company recognises revenug from contracts with customers based on a five step
model as set outin Ind 115:




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes fo the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

Step 1: identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met,

Step 2: identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Aliocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as} the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model
as set out below.

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;

e those to be subsequently measured at {either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss}, and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income,

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction fees or costs that are directly
attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset unless
otherwise specifically mentioned in the accounting policies.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is
held such that it best reflects the way the business is managed and is consistent with
information provided to management. The information considered includes:

—- the objectives for the portfolio, in particular, management’s strategy of focusing on
earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is
not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised. .

—— the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held
within that business mode! and how those risks are managed.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as cansideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period
of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,

the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing

whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or

amount of contractual cash flows such that it would net meet this condition. In making the

assessment, the Company considers:

-~ resetterms

— contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

— grepayment and extension terms; and

— features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of
interest rates.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are

met:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

~— the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest (EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and
reported as part of interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses if any,
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
7 s
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Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

Financia! asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVOCH)

Financial asset with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of principal
and interest and held in a business madel whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified to be measured at FVOCL. The
impairment losses, if any, on such instrument is recognized through Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as af amortized
cost or as FVQC, is classified to be measured at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
All financial iiabilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost except when designated
to be measured at FVTPL.

C. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for credit risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit foss
model specified by Ind AS 109 and in accordance with uniform standards applied,
encompasses all financial assets measured at amortized cost. The calculation of the provision
for credit risks generally takes into account the exposure at default, the probability of default
and the loss given default.

Financial assets are subject to credit risks, which are taken intoc account by recognizing the
amount of the expected loss; such allowances are recognized for both financial assets with
objective evidence of impairment and non-impaired financial assets.

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortized cost on initial
recognition. Financial assets are broken down into three stages in the general approach. Stage
1 consists of financial assets that are being recognized for the first time or that have not
demonstrated any significant increase in probability of default since initial recognition. In this
stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next twelve
months. Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is a significant increase in credit
risk. Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment are allocated to Stage
3. In Stages 2 and 3, an expected credit foss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of
the asset.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it

is more than 30 days past due. For the wholesale portfolio, the credit risk is assumed to have

been increased based on change in the risk class according to the master scale as of reporting

date is compared with the risk class according to master scale as of initial recognition

The Company considers a financial asset to be in defauit when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security {if any is held}; or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due

- For wholesale portfolio, it alsc depends on the risk class as per the master scale of the
Company




Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued)

In the case of financial assets already impaired on initial recognition and classified as purchase
originated and impaired assets {“POC!"} for the purposes of the disclosures, the provision for
credit risks is recognized in subsequent measurement on the basis of the cumulative changes
in the expected credit loss for the entire life of the asset concerned. Any financial instrument
already classified as impaired on initial recognition remains in this stage until it is
derecognized.

Both histarical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each portfolio,
and forward- looking information is used to determine the measurement parameters for
calculating the provision for credit risks.

Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed payment over a certain period,
the initiation of enforcement measures, the threat of insolvency or over indebtedness,
application for or the initiation of insolvency proceedings, or the failure of restructuring
measures.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowances are appropriate. Uncollectible
loans or receivables that are already subject to a workout process and for which all collateral
has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been
exhausted are written off directly. Any valuation allowances previously recoghized are
utilized. Income subsequently collected in tonnection with loans or receivables already
written off is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are reported in the balance sheet at the net carrying amount. The
provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet irrevocable credit commitments is
recognized with- in other liabilities.

D. WRITE-OFFS

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss
allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied
against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on
financial instruments in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, financial assets that are
written off may be subject to enforcement ‘activities to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due,

E. DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets} is primarily derecagnised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangemeni; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has’
transferred control of the asset. *
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. in that case, the Company alsa recognizes an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the originai carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
{or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i)
the consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OClis recognised in statement
of profit or loss.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

F. MODIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets

if the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows
of the modified asset are substantially different. if the cash flows are substantially different,
then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have
expired. in this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

if the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different,
then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the
Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present vaiue of
the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the
gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any
costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. if such a modification is
carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or [oss is presented
together with impairment losses, in other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial lizbility when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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Hotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued}

G. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial instruments.

When measuring the fair vaiue of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses

observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levelsin a

fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices}.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

if the inputs used to measure the fair vaiue of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the jowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting pericd during which the change has occurred.

H. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabiiities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to setiie on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liahilities
simultaneously.

[, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has power tc control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Investment in subsidiary is
carried at cost in separate financial statements.

1. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
such transactions. Foreign currency menetary assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet
date are transiated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and
losses arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on settlement/transiation
of foreign currency monetary assets and labilities are recognized in the statement of profit

and loss.
P K. TRADE RECEIVABLES
JARRAGN,
T “z*f"%% Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in

the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of .~ .
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MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore, measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance.

L. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company pricr to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

M. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acguisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the
property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. Gain or losses
arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of property, plant
and eguipment and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on 2 pro-rata basis on a Straight Line Method over the estimated
useful life of property, plant and eguipment at rates which are equal to or higher than the
rates prescribed under Schedule i of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual
usage of property, plant and equipment. The estimates of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, based on a technical evaluation, are reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. Estimated useful lives over which-assets are deprecizted are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life in years
Building 30

Leasehold improvements Over the lease period
Office Equipment 5

Computers - Servers and Networks &
Computers - Laptops and Desktops | 3
1
3

Furniture and Fixtures o

Vehicles
Vehicles given on operating lease QOver the lease period

Used property, plant and eguipment purchased are depreciated over the residual useful life
from the date of original purchase. For property, plant and equipment purchased and sold
during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis by the Company.

Property, plant and equipment costing less than Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of ,

%
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s
judgement, are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. it is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) the Company has a legally enforcesable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferrad tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

R. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

I. Provident fund is.a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the
statute to Government Provident Fund are charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss
when due.

il Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Company

" accounts for liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial valuation. The net
present value of the Company’s obligation towards the same is actuarially determined
based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date. '

. Remeasurement of all defined benefit plans, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the year they are incurred.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period.
Remeasurement gains or losses on long term compensated absences that are classified as
other long term benefits are recognised in profit or loss. Net interest expense {income) on
the net defined liability (assets} is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure
the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial
year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments
during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued)

N. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from
the date they are available for use. Estimated useful life over which intangible assets are
amortised are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life in years
Software 4

O. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlied by the Company are recognised as intangible assets
when the following criteria are met:
e it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use
° management intends to complete the software and use or sell it
e there isan ability to use or sell the software
e it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probabie future economic
benefits
e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the software are available, and
o the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the intangible assets under
development include emgloyee costs and anappropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is available for use.

P. BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs other than those directly attributable to qualifying Property, Plant and
Equipment are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Q. INCOME TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCL

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for
the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the

wﬁ%%% tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted.-
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Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued)

iIV. The Company accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial
valuation as at the balance sheet date conducted by an independent actuary which
includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary increases, interest
rates and leave utilisation. The net present value of the Company’s obligation is
determined based on the projectad unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.

S. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Company’s operating segments are established on the basis of those components of the
Company that are evaluated regularly by the Managing Director (the ‘Chief Operating Decision
Maker’ as defined in Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating Segments’}, in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. These have been identified taking into account nature of
products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business reporting
systems.

Company has two principal operating and reporting segments viz
- Retail finance
~  Dealer finance

Revenue and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to
operating activities of the segment. Revenue and Expenses which relate to the Company as a
whole and are not allocable to 2 segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as
“Unallocable”

Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective
segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be
allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unaliocable”.

T. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharehoiders {after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
period. The weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders;
share split; and reverse share split {conselidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or ioss for the period
attributable to equity sharehoiders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

U. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
e Ol & »5%“‘5%% there is present obligation as a resuit of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent liabllities are not recognised but disciosed in the notes. ,
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in financial statements.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

Y., OPERATING LEASES

The company has applied IND AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets. The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and tease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less.

i.  Right to use of Asset

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date (i.e., the date of
adoption of ind As 116). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

it Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the fease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease paymenis that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guaranizes.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the Ind AS 116 adoption date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. in addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used o determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

W.CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

X. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any
indication of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and their value
in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value
based on an appropriate discount factor.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset {other than a
revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer exists or may have decreased,
such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the
extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of
revalued assets, such reversal is not recognized.

Y. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and balances with banks. It also
comprises of short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Z. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in eguity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

AA. NON-CURENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets are classified as hald for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs
to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised.
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets that are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.

f:‘ff"’%ﬁ%‘mﬁ{ﬁ% Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as
‘ h held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet s
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Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {Continued)

AB. Transfer to special reserve

As per section 45-iC of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 {the RB! Act), the company is
transferring an amount not iess than 20 per cent of its net profit to a reserve fund before
declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this reserve fund is permitted only for the purpose
specified by RBL

AC. Goods and service tax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except:

(i} when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable;

(i} when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021 [continued)

2) Cash and cash eguivalents

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs}
Cash on Hand 12.43 0.0
Bank Balance in
Current Account 4,727.01 345.9°
Total 4,739.44 348.8¢

There are no repatriation restriction with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior periods

3) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

March 31, 2021
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Bank deposits {due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date) 1.47 1.1f
{Deposits are held with a Bank for issuing Bank Guarantee in favour of VAT
authorities)
Total 1.47 1.1
4) Receivables
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Trade Reczivables
Unsecured, considered good 715.78 730.50
Sub total 715.78 730.5.
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good -
Total 715.78 730.57
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued}

5) Loans
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
{A)
Classification
Amortised cost:

(i} Vehitle Finance #
{ii) Term Loans

Fair Value:

- through profit & Loss

- designated at fair value through OCl
Total Gross (A)

Less:

Less: Irrpairment allowance

Total Nat {4)

(8)

{1} Secured by tangible assets*
{if} Unsecured

Total Gross (B)

Less: irpairment allowance
Total Net {B)

{c)

{1) Loans in ndia

(i) Publiz Sector

{it} Othsrs -

Total Gross [T} {1}

Less: impakrment allowance
Total Nat (£} {1}

{11) Loans sutside India
Less: imgpairment allowance

Total Nat {CT) (11}

Total (€ {I¥ and {11}

267,117.92 356,378.7¢
20,330.18 23,706.0¢
287,448.10 380,084.8:
(36,845.56) (36,183.28
250,602.54 343,901.53
180,364.33 265,403.6¢
107,083.77 114,681.1¢
287,448.10 380,084.82
(36,845.56) (36,183.28
250,602.54 343,901.53
287,448.10 380,084.8:
287,448.10 380,084.8:
{36,845.56) (36,183.28
250,602.54 343,901.5
250,602.54 343,901.53

*yehicle finance is secured by hypothecation of vehicles and / or undertaking to create security. Term Loans are secured against
hypothecation of immovable properties
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

6) Investment

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
At Cost
Investment in Subsidiary {Previous Year: Associate!}
Fully paid equity shares {unquoted} 8,514.71 1,944.8¢
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (unguoted) 505.00 505.0(
Total 9,019.71 2,449.84
In India 9,019.71 2,449.84
Outside Indiz - . -
Total 9,019.71 2,449.84
7} Other Financial Assets
particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Deposits 392.90 495.8!
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 6.37 104.5:
Total 399.27 600.36
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued}

& {a} Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles Assets

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION / AMIORTISATION NET BOOK VALUE
Particulars Asat Additions during { Sales during the year As at Asat For the year Deduction for the Asat Asat
Apr 01,2020 the year March 31, 2021 Apr 01,2020 year March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Tangible Assets
Own Assets
Office Equipment 129.20 522 4.57 129.85 80.17 21,95 715 94.97 34,88
Building* 24.83 “ - 24.83 2,94 0.98 - 3.92 2051
Computers 403.17 83.38 49.36 437.19 222,63 50,986 44,79 238.80 198.39
Furniture and Fixtures 58.40 - 2.08 56.32 2293 7.86 2.02 28,77 27.55
teasehold improvements 85.92 B - 85,92 85.92 B - 85,92 -
Vehicle 496.29 77.54 130.54 443,29 131.50 55.05 53.38 133.17 310.12
Right of Use Asset 1,195.94 1,808.20 946.86 2,057.28 521.34 51791 837.60 201.65 1,855.63
Assets given on Operating Lease - - - -
Vehicles on Lease 41.80 - 4180 {0.00} 21.17 - 21.17 0.00 0.00
Total {A} 2,435.55 1,974.34 1,175.21 3,234.68 1,088.60 664,71 96611 787.20 2,447.48
intangible Assets
Software 741.90 29.41 - 771.31 501.29 110.58 611.87 158,44
Total (B} 74190 2041 : 77141 50129 " ii0x58 - 61187 159.44
Fotal Fixed Assets {A+B) 3,377.45 2,003.75 1,175.21 4,005,599 1,589.89 775,25 966.11 1,399.07 2,606.92
Previous Year 2,830.23 558.23 251.01 3,177.45 330.91 854.30 95.31 1,068.57 1,587.54

*Building 1s mortgaged for the non-convertible debentures. Buifding includes value of shares in the co-operative society, aggregating to Rs.250 {Previous Year Rs. 250) registered in the name of the Company. The depreciation for the year is Rs. 0.98 lakhs
and the wtitten down value of the asset as on 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 20.91 lakhs.

# Vehicle are leased to third parties under fong term operating leases with rentals receivable monthly. The rental income recognized i the year is immaterial.
There is no impairment loss on property, plant & equipment.




GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION NET BOOK VALUE
. Asat Additions during | Sales during the year As at Asat For the year Deduction for the As at Asat
Particulars Apr 01, 2019 the year . Mareh 31, 2020 Apr 01,2019 year March 31, 2020 March 21, 2020
‘tangible Assets
Own Assets
Office Equiprrent 118.57 9.63 - 129.20 58.71 21.46 - 80.17 49.03
Building™® 24.83 - - 24,83 1.96 0.98 ~ 2.94 21.89
Computers 323,15 80.32 0.31 403.17 162.39 60.54 0.31 222.63 180.54
Furniture and Fixtures 62.27 1.82 570 58.40 17.20 7.95 222 22.93 3547
Leasehold mprovements 85.92 - - 85.92 85.81 0.11 - 85.92 {0.00}
Vehicle 447.01 143.14 93.86 496.29 112.59 55.56 36.66 131.50 364.79
Right of Use Asset 993.07 202 87 1,195.94 521.34 674.60
Assets given on Operating Lease
Vehicles on Lease 122,44 70.52 161,156 41,80 40,33 36,97 56,12 21,17 20.63
Total (A} 2,178.26 508.30 251.01 2,435.55 479.00 704,92 95.31 562,27 1,346.93
Intangible Assets
Software 651.97 89.93 - 741.90 351.91 149.38 501.29 240.61
Total (B} 651.97 89.93 « 741.50 351.91 149.38 - 501,29 240.61
Total Fixed Assets (A+B} 2,830.23 598.23 25101 3,177.45 830.91 854.30 95,31 1,068.57 1,587.54
Previpus Year 1,712.86 230,92 106.63 1,837.15 471.91 364,36 536 830,91 1,006.24

*Building 1s mortgaged for the nan-convertitile debentures. Burlditg includes value of shares in the co-operative soctety, aggregating to Rs.250 (registered in the name of the Company. The depreciation for the year is Rs. 0,98 lakhs and the written down
3 Vehicle are leased to third parties under long term operating leases with rentals receivable monthly. The rentat income recognized in the year s immateriat.
There is no impairment loss on plant, property & equipment.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (conﬁnued)

8{b) Capiial work in progress and Intangible Assets under Development

Capital work-in-

Intangible Assets

Particulars

Progress under Development
Opening balance as on April 01, 2019 28.46 1821.96
Additions during the year 182.01 611.37
Capitalized during the year {210.48} {112.35)
Expensed during the year® {2,413.99)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2020 0.00 2.00
Opering balance as on April 01, 2020 0.00 7.00
Additions during the year 68.24 127.71
Capitalized during the year {68.24) {127.71)
Expensed during the year - {7.00)
Closing halance as on March 31, 2021 0.00 0.00

*During the previous year the Company has written off the expenditure incurred on the Casicappe project as the

project has been discontinued.

9 {a) Other non financial assets

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs} (Rs. in Lakhs)
Advance Tax and TDS & TCS {Net of provision) 3,096.88 1,491.89
Service Tax Receivable 2,534.09 2,534.09
Cther Current Assets 920.91 41434
{Other current assets includes advances to vendors and
prepaid expenses)
Total 6,551.88 4,440.32




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

9{b} Assets held for sale

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars .
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Assets Held for Sale 130.41 134.30
{Assets held for sale includes the properties acquired in
settlement of loans. The asset is being actively marketed and is
expected to be sold in a due course)
Total 130.41 134.30
10} Payables
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
{1} Trade payables
{i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 23.40 2572
Total {i}
{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
erterprises and small enterprises :
-Payable for Vehicle Finance 4,408.12 1,800.46
-Other Trade Payables 389.69 1,504.56
Total {ii)
{11} Other payables
{i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 4,821.21 3,430.75
Refer to note 36 for details for micro enterprises and small enterprises
{There are no amounts due for payment to the investor education and protection fund under Section 125 of the
Cormpanies Act 2013 }
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 32, 2021 {continued}

11) Debt Securities

March 31, 2021
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs}

Classification:

Amortised Cost
Non Convertible Debentures
Fair Value:
- through profit & Loss
- designated at fair value through OC

Total (A}

Debt securities in India
Debt securities outside India

Totat {B}

15,732.33 152,048.12
15,732.33 152,048.12
15,732.33 152,048.12
15,732.33 152,048.12

# Non Convertible Debentures are secured by way of mortgage of specific immovable property of Rs. 20.91 Lakhs {March 31, 2020 - Rs.21.89 Lakhs} and specific
receivables of the Company arising out of auto loan of Gross ook Value of Rs. 287,448.10 Lakhs and Net of ECL provision of Rs. 250,602.54 Lakhs {March 31, 202¢
- Gross Book Value of Rs. 380,084.82 Lakhs and Net of ECL provision Rs.343,901.53 Lakhs)

Note 11 {a}:NLCDs repayment details

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Debent Dat Red tion Dat
ebenture lssue Date edemption Date {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
1500 units {Previcus Year: 1500 units) VWFPL NCD F FY 2017-18, face value of 05-Dec-17 04-Dec-20 15,000.00
Rs. 1,000,000 sach .
2 its{Previ H i WFPL NCD D FY 2017-18, £ ue ¢
500 units{Previcus Year: 2500 units) V C 8, face value of 11-Sep-17 11-Sep-20 25,000.00
Rs. 1,000,000 each
i ravi Year: 1 its) VW Y -18, I3
1500 units{Previous Year: 1500 units) FPL NCD E FY 2017-18, face value f 05-Dec-17 31-Aug-20 15,000.00
Rs. 1,000,000 each
i i : its} VWFPL N Y - &
30008 units {Frevz«{aus Year: 3000 units} FPL NCD C FY 2017-18, face vatue of 11-lul-17 13-Jul-20 30,000.00
Rs. 1,000,080 sach
1000 units{Previous Year: 1000 units} VWFPL NCD B FY 2017-18, face value of 19-1un-17 18-1un-20 10,000.00
Rs. 1,000,000 each
2000 units {Previcus Year: 2000 units), VWFPL NCD A 02 FY 2015-16, face
25-May-15 20,000.0C
value of Rs. 1,000,000 each ¥ 29-May-20
i tous Year: Nil), V Y - . .
1,500 units {P’revmhs ear: Nil), VWFPL NCD A FY 2019-20, face value of Rs 30-Alg-19 18-Feb-21 15,000.00
1,000,000 sach
1,500 units {Pravious Year: Nil}, VWFPL NCD B FY 2019-20, face value of Rs. 30-Aug-19 37-Mav-21 15.000.00 15.000.0C
1,000,000 each AUE May PR e
(These debentures are secured by way of Mortgage of specific immovabie
property and specific receivables of the Company arising out of loan.)
Add: Adjustment for interest accured and transaction costs as per EIR 732.33 7,048.12
15,732.33 152,048.12




Volkswagen Finence Private Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {mmﬁnue}é)

12) Borrowings other than debt securities

Particulars

Miarch 31, 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs)

{a) Term loang*

{b) Bank overdraft®

{c) Working capital demand loans*
(d) Commercial papers

Total (&)

Borrowings in india
Borrowings outside india

Total (B}

Secured Borrowings
Unsecured Barrowings

Total {C}

48,800.00 55,100.00

17,450.00 -

56,000.00 15,570.82
122,250.00 70,670.82
122,250.00 70,670.82
122,250.00 70,670.82
122,250.00 70,670.82
122,250.00 70,670.82

*These are guaranteed by corporate guarantee issued by Volkswagen Financiat

Note 12 {a}: Term loan details

Services A.G., Germany, the halding company.

Particulars

Miarch 31, 2021
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs}

Term loans
From Banks
From Financial Institutions

{Terms loans are guaranteed by corporate guarantee issued by Volkswagen
Financial Servizes A.G., Germany)
{As per terms of agreement, loans from banks are repayble at maturity
ranging between 15 to 33 months from the date of respective loans. Rate o*
interest payable on term loans varies between 7.37% to 7.99% {Previous Year:
7.37% to 7.95%))

Total

48,800.00

55,100.00

48,800.00

55,100.00
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

Note 12 {b): Working capital details

Particulars tavch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Working Capital Demand Loans from Banks 56,000.00 15,570.82
Total Working Capital Demand Loans from Banks 56,000.00 15,570.82

{Working Capital Demand Loans are guaranteed by corporate guarantee
issued by Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany)

{As per terms of agreemaent, loans from banks are repayble at maturity
ranging between 12 days to 3 months from the date of respective joans. Rate
of interest payable on working capital term loans varies between 3.80% to
5.72% {Previous Year: 5.80% to 6.01%))




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

13) Other Financial Liabilities

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars .
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Dues 1o Employees 698.08 8944.99
Lease Liabilities 1,722.10 644.92
Total 2,420.18 1,588.91
14) Gther non financial liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Income Received in Advance 0.00 {0.00)
Employee Benefits
Gratuity 176.68 206.97
Leave Encashment 125.80 145.74
Provision for Expenses 1,451.94 1,889.73
Other Lisbilities {including statutory dues) 612.35 314.78
isi d D
Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at 2.011.57 1.085.22
Source)
{Refer Note 39)
Total 4,378.34 3,642.44
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Volltswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes o the Financial Statements for the year ended #March 31, 2021 {continued)

15} Enuity Share Capital

. flarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars .
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Authorised: .
146,610,000 {Pravious Year: 146,610,000) Cat ‘A’ Equity Sh
(Previous Ye ) Category 'A’ Equity Share 14,661.00 14,661.00
of Rs.10 each
1,482,350,000 {Previous Year: 1,482,390,000) Category '8’ Equity
148,239.00 148,235.00
Shares of Rs. 10 each
162,300.00 162,900.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
105,192,207 {Previous Year: 105,192,207) Category ‘A’ Equity Shares
of Rs.10 esch, fully paid up 10,519.22 10,519.22
1,063,609,537 {Previous Year: 1,063,608,937) Category '8’ Equity
Shares of Rs.10 sach, fully paid up 106,360.59 106,360.99
Total 116,880.21 116,880.21
15 {2} Reconcilistion of number of shares
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
! No of shares Armount No of shares Amount
Balance i the beginning and end of the year
Category ‘A Eguity Shares 105,192,207 10,518.22 105,192,207 10,518.22
Category ‘B Equity Shares 1,063,609,937 106,360.99 1,063,609,937 106,360.85
Add: Shares Issusd during the year
Category ‘&' Equity Shares - - -
Category 'B' Equity Shares - - -
Balance at tha end of the year
Category 'A' Equity Shares 195,192,207 19,519 105,192,207 18,518
Category 'B' Equity Shares 1,063,609,937 106,361 1,063,609,937 106,361

15 (b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company's authorised share capital is divided into Category *A’ equity shares and Category 'B' equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 each.
Category ‘& equity shares carry voting rights and dividend rights. Type “B” Equity Shares of Rs.10/- carrying no voting rights and no dividend rights.
Category ‘B’ equity shares are non participating, non-cumulative and shaif not be entitled to any surplus on winding up or other distribution such as
bonus shares eic. together with rights, privileges and conditions attaching thereto as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued]
15 {c} Shares held by holding company #

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars
{Rupees) {Rupees)
Equity Shares:
105,192,207 Category ‘A’ equity shares {Previous Year: 105,192,207} held by Volkswagen 10,519.22 10,519.22
1,063,608,937 Category 'B ' equity shares {Previous Year: 1,063,609,937} held by Volkswagen 106,360.99 106,360.99
# Based on the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, The Company has considerad
Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V,Netherlands as its Holding Company.
15 {d} Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars March 31, 2021 Percentage
a {No. of shares) holding
Equity Shares:
105,192,207 Category 'A’ equity shares (Previous Year 2020: 105,192,207) heid by
Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V., Netherland, the subsidiary of Volkswegen Financial 105,192,207 100%
Services AG, Germany.
1,063,609,537 Category 'B ' equity shares {Previous Year 2020: 1,063,609,537) held by
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany. 1,063,609,937 100%
16} Other Equity
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

rticul
Particulars {Rs. in Lakhs}

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Special Reserves under section 45-{C of the Reserve Bank of India 6,242.62 5,796.84
Retained sarnings 10,776.14 8,992.24
TOTAL RESERVES 17,018.76 14,789.08




Votkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

Nature and purpose of other equity

{i} Special Reserve under section 45-IC{1) of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934
According to section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 every Non Banking Financial Company is to
create a reserve fund and transfer a sum not less than 20% of tha net profit every year before declaration of
dividend. For preventing the defaults by the Non Banking Financial Companies, this is an added measure of
protection created by the statute. it is created in order to give the entities and its creditors protection from the

effect of lnsses.
(i) Retained sarnings

Retained earnings represents the surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and

distribution to shareholders.

16 {a} Other equity: Movement

are available for

Particulars fMarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
' {Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Special Reserves under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,796.84 5,796.84
Transfered from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 44578 -
Balance af the end of the year 6,242.62 5,796.84
Surplus/{Deficit] in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance &t the beginning of the year 8,978.23 11,424.66
Profit / {Loss) for the year 2,228.92 {2,446.43)
Less: Transferto Special Reserve under section 45-IC of the Reserve
o (445.78)
Bank of india Act, 1934.
10,761.37 8,978.23
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year 14.00 2231
Changes during the year 0.77 {8.31)
Balance at the end of the year 14.77 14.00
TOTAL RESERVES 17,018.76 14,789.08
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Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

17} interest income using effective interest rate
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Classification:
On Financial Assets measured:
- at Amortised Cost
{i} Interest on loans 30,091.77 42,179.28
{it} Interest on deposits with banks 200.38 457
{iit} Other interest income
- through profit and Loss
~through OCI
Total 30,282.15 42,183.85
18} Fees and commission income
barticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Processing Fees 543.17 461.22
{Processing fees pertains to working capital loans of upto one year)
Service Income 2,988.83 4,051.63
Total 3,532.00 4,512.84
18) Other operating income
Particular March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
articutars {Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Operating Lease income - 43,88
fncome from customer services 763.38 874.90
Total 763.38 918.78
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Vollkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued)
20} Other income

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
Foreign Exchange Gain {net} 40.01 -
Excess provision no longer required - -
Miscellaneous income 330.01 246.28

Total 379.02 246.28




Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

21} Finance Cost

Particulars

March 31, 2021
{Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Interest Expenses:
Classification:

{On Financial Assets measured :
- at Amortised Cost

{i} Interest on debt securities 5,483.90 14,395.80
{ii} Interest on other than debt securities:
-Bank Overdraft 268.08 333.65
-Commercial Papers 618.45 3,619.52
-Working Capital Demand Lean 2,301.88 4,087.00
-Term Loans 4,136.33 2,202.31
-Others 457 21.82
{iil} Other borrowing costs 300.41 435.12
- through profit and Loss - -
- through OCl - -
Total 13,113.62 22,585.23
22} Fees and Commission Expenses
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Commission to Dealers 21.43 357.599
Commission to Dealers - Insurance 2,368.00 2,902.73
Total 2,389.43 3,260.72
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23} Impairment on financial instruments

Particulars

March 31, 2021
(Rs. In Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Clagsification:
On Financial Assets measured at :
- at Amortised Cost

{i} Loans 662.27 {2,306.39)

{ii} Trade Receivables - -
- through profit and Loss
- through OC!
Expected credit loss - Loans 662.27 {2,300.39)
Expected credit loss - Others
Bad Debts Written Off 5,543.16 7,467.25

Total 6,205.43 5,166.86
24} Employee Benefits Expenses
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 3,433.32 4,352.24
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 112.61 133.21
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans -
Gratuity 49,51 46.05
Exgenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans -
Leave Encashment 31.54 73.50
Staff Welfare 172.02 246.71
Training and Recruitment Expenses 15.82 80.59
Total 3,818.82 4,972.70




25} Other Expenses

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars .
{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)

Rent

-Building 37.45 82.38

-IT Equipment Lease Rent 42.11 45.43

-Others - -
Legal, Professional and Censultancy Fees 1,128.23 1,341.85
Loan Acguisition Expenses - 74.82
Auditor's Remuneration 64.00 54.97
information Technology Support Charges 2,287.67 4,442 58
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 326.76 326.02
Traveiing and Conveyance 46.09 282.73
Printing and Stationery 6.18 4415
Communication 57.86 92.35
Business Promotion - 400.7S
Facilities Management Charges 73.08 59.59
Electricity 28.60 53.25
Rates and Taxes 971.37 1,033.43
Foreign Exchange Loss {net) - 58.21
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets {net) 5.17 8.80
Directors Sitting Fees 23.00 24.00
Collection Agency Charges 436.75 589.45
Corporate Social Responsibility Spending 898.42 150.91
Miscellaneous 143.14 339.64

Total 5,775.88 9,605.86
Note A: Auditor's remuneration
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars

{Rs. In Lakhs)

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Spiit of 2udit remuneration
- Statutory Audit
- Tax Audit
- Other Services™
- Reimbursement of expenses
* includes amounts debited to Professionzl and legal fees
Total

42.00 44.00
3.00 3.00
24.00 7.68
- 0.28
69.00 54.97




Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Huotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 32, 2021 (continued)

28} Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are caiculated by dividing the profit / {loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the

Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / {loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into

Equity shares.

Particulars

March 31, 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Net floss) / profit from continued operation atiributable to
equity holders

Category 'A’ shares

Category 'B' shares

Category "A' shares

Wisighted average number of ordinary shares

Opening equity share

Weighted average number of shares at year end

Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the
effect of dilution

Baslc earnings / {loss) per share {INR) {Face value of Rs. 10 per
sharg)

Diluted earnings / {loss) per share {INR]) [Face value of Rs. 10 per
share}

Category 'B' shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Opening equity share

Weighted average number of shares at year end

Weighted average number of shares at year end adjusted for the
effect of dilution

Basic earnings / {ioss) per share {INR) {Face value of Rs. 10 per
share}

Diluted earnings / {loss) per share (INR) {Face value of Rs. 10 per
shara}

Face value per share [INR)

2,228.92 {2,446.43)
200.60 (220.18)
2,028.31 (2,226.24)
105,192,207 105,192,207
105,192,207 105,192,207
105,192,207 105,192,207

0.19 {0.21}

0.18 {0.21}
1,063,608,537 1,063,609,937
1,063,608,937 1,063,609,937
1,063,609,937 1,063,605,537

0.15 {0.21}

0.15 {0.21)

10 10

For the purpose of calculating Earnings per share, dividend upto 6% of the total capital belongs to both Category
‘47 Eguity shares and Category ‘B’ Equity shares proportionate to their weighted average share holding and
dividend over and above 6% belongs to Category ‘&” Equity shares only (subject to approval from Board of o
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended farch 31, 2021 {continued)

27} Empioyee banefit obligations

The Comparny has following post-employment defined benefit plans in india.

A, Defined Contribution Plans:

In accordance with Indian regulations, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, 2 defined contribution plan,
in which, both the employee and the Company contribute manthly at & determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognised provident fund.
The employee contributes 12% of his or her basic salary and the Company contributes an equal amount. The Company recognized Rs. 112.61 Lakhs

{Previous year. Rs. 133.21 Lakhs} for Provident Fund contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Defined Benefit Plan:

The Corapany offers the following employee benefit schemes to its emgployees:

In accardance with Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined herefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan
provides a fump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee’s salary and the years

of employment with the Company subject to maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs. {Praevious Year Rs. 20 lakhs).

The gratuty benefit is provided through unfunded plan and annual contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under the scheme, the
settlement obligation remains with the Company. Company accounts for the Hability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The net
present value of the Company’s obligation towards the same is actuariaily determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet

date.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets cut the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the

Company's financial statements s at balance sheet date:

Particulars

March 31, 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs}

Non Curvent

Gratuity 145.44 167.77
Total Non Current 145.44 167.77
Current

Gratulty 31.24 39.20
Total Currant 31.24 38.20

Moversent in net defined benefit {asset} lability

The following “able shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the £losing balances for net defined benefit {(asset) liabitity

and its components:

Particulars

March 31, 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs}

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs}

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 206.97 180.81
Current service cost 37.79 34.68
Past sendce tost - -
Interest expense/lincome) 11.71 11.37
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 49.51 £6.05
Remeusurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest

expensef{income} . .
{Gairt )floss from change in demaographic assumptions 0.00
{Gain }floss fram change in financial assumptions 5.40 5.70
Experience {gains}/losses (6.43) 5.40
Actual Return on Plan assets - -
Total anmount recagnised in other cormprehensive income {1.03} 11.10
Employer contributions - -
Benefit payments {78.77) {30.99}
Defined Bonefit Obligations at the end of the year 176.68 206.87




Yolkswagen Finance Private Limnited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

Particulars

March 31, 2021
{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs}

Present vahue of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus of funded plan

Unfunded plan

176.68

206.97

Surplus of gratuity plan

176.68

206.97

Expectad Future Cashflows

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Year 3 31.24 39.20
Year Z 2842 3557
Year 3 27.68 31.84
Year & 24.64 29.00
Year 5 21.24 2475
Year 6-10 61.71 74.39
Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The sighificant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Discourd rate 5.50% 6.25%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%

ALM {2012-14) IALM {2012-14)
Morta ity Rate Ultimate Ultimate

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

incresse in assumption {100 bps)

Decrease in assumption {100 bgs)

Parsiculats March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Discount rate 165.56 198.92 184.42 21571
Salary ascalation rate 184.17 215.48 168.66 198.98
Expected Return on plan assets - - - -

The sbove sensitivity analyses are based on & change in an assumption while holding alt other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,

and thanges in some of the assumptions may be correlated .

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period. .

C. Accurnulated Compensated Absences

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The Com

recogrized Rs. 31.54 Lakhs {Previous year. Rs.73.90 Lakhs} for Compensated Absences in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Volkswegen Fnance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financizl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

28} Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(i) Market risk

{ii} Credit sk

(i} Ligguiidhsty visk

Risk management framework

The Comgpany’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the estabiishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of
directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The
commities reponrts regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to jdentify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to fimits. Risk managerment policies and systerrs are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which alt amployees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adaquacy of
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk managemant controls and srocedures, the resuits of which are reported to the audit committee.

{1} Market risk

Market isk is the risk that changes in market prices and is exposed to risks such as
a} Interest rate risk

b} Currency risk

¢} Prepayment risk

which wili affect the Company’s income. The objective of marxet risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

a} interest rate risk
interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the fair value or cash flows of the financial assets and financiai liabilities.
Normally, the Company's business is exposed to interest rate risk as a resuit of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-balance-sheet

instruments that mature or reprice in a given period. The Corrpany manages this risk by matching the assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.

The table below details the exposure of the Company to interest rate risk

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Fixed rate
Financiat assets 244,732.53 169,502.28
Financis! Habilties 120,532.33 222,718.94
Floating rate instruments
Financiad agsets 42,715.58 210,582.54
Financiai kebilsies 17,450.00 -

The interest rate sensitivity of the income statement measures the effect of assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the
interest bearing financial assets and liabilities held at year end. The interest rate sensitivity in the income statement is the impact of changes in interest rates on the
fair value of floating rate loans {working capital demand loan and bank overdraft) and floating rate loans given {dealer funding) as at the year end.

The following :able reflects the effects of 50 bps to 100 bps hasis points thange in interest rate curve on the income statement with al} other variables held

constant:
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Decreasa by 50bps to 100 bps:
- Impact on income statement {253.74} (59.08)
- Other Comprehensive Income
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continuad)

b} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair vaiue of a financial instrument wili fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed ta foreign
exchange rates on account of payables outstanding in the financial statements. Cutstanding positions are monitored on a periodical basis to ensure that the

positions are within established limits.

The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period expressed are as follows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
IParticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial Lishilities
Payable to Reluted Porties
EURO {net of receivables) 751.36 591.74
SEK 8.88 -
Other Payables
GBP - 3.49

The Sensitivity of Profit and Lass and OC! to changes in the exchange rates are as follows:
The Company has considered the maximum price movement in the respective currency during the year as sentivity benchmark for the

purpose of Forgign Currency Sensitivity Analysis
{Rs. in Lakhs}

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Adverse change it foreign exchange rate based on previous 12
months movement in exchange rate
- Impact on income statement

EURD (28.78) {30.18)
SEK {0.60)
GBP {0.15)

- Other Comprehensive Income

¢} Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request repayment earlier than expected
particularly in case of fixed rate loans when interest rates fall.

Most of the Company's interest-bearing financial assets are at “ixed rates loans. In addition, majority of the interest-bearing financial liabilities have a maturity of
less than one year and the Company also has a repayment option to prepay the habllities. Accordingly, the Company is not exposed to significant prepayment risk
since the financial liabilities can be paid in case of prepayments of financial assets.

i) Credit Risk
Credit risk i the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally from the Company's receivables from customers and foans and advances. Credit risk encompasses both, direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration
of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks.
{a) Expected Credit Loss measurement

Ind AS 109 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition wherein if a financial instrument that is not
credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1. If a significant increase In credit risk {‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument
is moved to Stage 2 but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired and if the financal instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to Stage 3.
Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financiat assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition and are taken to Stage 3

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets {debt instruments) whose changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income and for irrevocable credit commitments unless there is already objective evidence of impairment on initial recognition. Financial assets are
broken down into three stages in the general approach. Stage 1 consists of financial assets that are being recognized for the first time or that have not
demonstrated any significant increase in probability of default since initial recognition. In this stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit lass for
the next twelve months. Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is an significant increase in credit risk. Financial assets demonstrating objective
indications of impairment are aliocated to Stage 3. In Stages 2 and 3, an expectead credit loss Is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of the asset.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due. For the wholesale portfolio, the credit
risk is assumed o have been increased based on change in the risk class accordirg to the master scale as of reporting date is compared with the risk class according

to master scale as af initial recognition
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standaione Financial Statements for the year endad March 31, 2021 [continued)

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

-the borrower is undikely to pay its credit cbligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security {if any is held};
or

-the financiaf assets is 91 days or mare past due

In the case of financial assets already impaired on initial recognition and classified as purchase originated and impaired assets {“POCI”} for the purposes of the
disclosures, the provision for credit risks is recognized in subsecuent measurerment on the basis of the cumulative changes in the expected credit loss for the entire
life of the asset concerned. Any financial instrument already classifiad as impaired on initial recognition remains in this stage until it is derecognized.

Both historscal infprmation, such as average historical default probabifities for’ each portfolio, and forward- looking information is used to determine the
measurement perameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the credit risk provisions are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables that are zlready subject to a workout
process and for which all collateral has been recovered and all “urther options for recovering the loan or receivable have been exhausted are written off based on
the managament’s decisions. Any provision allowances previously recognized are utilized. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or receivables
already written off is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans are reported in the balance sheet at the net carrying amount. The provision for credit risks relating to off-balance sheet revocable credit commitments is not
recongnized since the same are unconditionally cancellable commitments.

The Company does not recognize provision for credit risks for rezeivables and cash & cash equivalents since they carry low credit risk.

b} Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Company employs a range of tools to reduce credit risk. The Company seeks collateral coverage, assignment of contract proceeds and other forms of protection
to secure lending and minimize credit risks wherever possible. The Company’s borrowing agreements also include legally enforceable netting arrangements for
loans and deposits enabling the Company to consolidate the customer’s various accounts with the Company and either transfer credit balances to cover any
outstanding borrowings or freeze the credit balences until the customer settles their outstanding obligations to the Company.

Collateral held varigs, but may include:

- Underlying vehicles in case of retail portfolio

- Residential and commercial real estate property
- Land

- Bank guarantee

The Company’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period and there has been no significant change in the
overall quality of the collateral held by the Campany since the prior period.

e s o
ﬁ’ﬁ Syt e

’&-ﬁ’ﬂw"ﬂ ~4
Fpts \%'&f%}
T %
%fnfe’ {fe \5\% %ﬁ
g VBRI J
€2 {rﬁi’ﬁ;% - §C«§E3§

s
P



Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statermnents for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

The below table provides quantitative information of collateral for credit impaired assets under Stage 3
(Collateral Coverage - Value of collateral available to mitigate the credit exposure}

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Gross value of loan in
Loan To Value {LTV} range jstege 3
flarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Upto 50% Coverage
39,160.22 31,040.05
51% - 70% Covers,
° se 7,693.11 10,805.37
71% - 100% & 3
e Loversge 3,065.75 6,372.21
Above 100% covera
§ ge 2,583.32 2,714.07
52,502.48 50,931.70
¢} Credit risk profile
March 3%, 2021
{Rs. {n Lakbs)
Retail Portfolio
ECL staging
Rating Stage 1 %&age 2 S.tagfz 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 140,681.21 11,134.86 17,289.92 169,115.88
Less: Loss aliowance 1,691.05 2,917.67 11,018.24 15,627.95
Carrying emount 138,590.16 8,217.19 6,280.68 153,488.03
{Rs. in Lakhs}
Wholesale Portfolio
ECL staging
Category Stage i S_tag.e 2 S;tagie 3
i2-month Lifetime Lifetime Totail
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount $3,045.76 20,083.88 35,202.48 118,332.12
Less: Loss aflowance 524.07 680.42 20,013.12 21,217.60
Carrying amoant §2,521.69 19,403.47 15,189.36 97,114.51
Movement i Gross Carrying Amount
{Rs. in Lakhs}
ECL staging
Particulars Stage 1 S.tagle 2 Sfagﬁ 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Gross carvying amount as at March 31, 2020 277,150.13 52,002.98 50,931.70 380,084.82
Transfers: -
Transfer frons Stage 1 to Stege 2 {13,159.59) 9,193.31 - (966.27}
Transfes from Stage 2 to Stege 1 8,610.53 {11,861.78) - {3,251.16)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (9,346.10) 9,472.68 126.58
Transfer frem Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 286.25 {363.80} {77.55)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 {5,262.82) - 5,327.15 {35.67)
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 122,48 - {237.00}) {114.50}
New facility ardded during the period 38,422.29 7,189.11 107.86 45,718.25
increase i loan exposure in existing loan facility 21,80 - 1,450.04 1,471.84
Decrease in loan exposure in existing loan facility {53,078.82) (3,243.80) {701.62) {55,024.34)
Loans derecogrized during the period other than write-offs {43,140.40) {12,530.33}) {2,303.18) {63,973.88)
Decrease i lyan exposure due to write off {858.67) (470.83) {11,181.46) {12,511.02)
Gross carvying amount as at March 31, 2021 2(33,726.96 31,218.75 52,502.40 287,448.10
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Yolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 [continued)

Movernent in Provision

{Rs. in Lakhs)

ECL staging
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure
Provision amount as at March 31, 2020 3,510.96 3697.39 28,974.94 36,183.28
Transfers: -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {399.27) 2,222.95 - 1,823.68
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 120.78 {518.78) - {388.00}
Transfer ffom Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {1,360.62) 3,263.57 1,902.85
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 80.92 (144,47} {63.55)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 {201.81) - 2,337.12 2,135.31
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 7.12 - {105.50) {98.38)
New facility added during the period 304.53 283.20 38.28 626.02
Increase in loan exposure in existing loan facility 436.75 81.32 3,541.85 4,059.92
Decrease i? loan exposure in existing loan facility {794.13} {397.94) {606.68) (1,798.76)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs {741.05) {357.17) {447.33} {1,545.55)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off {28.76) {133.18) {5,819.43) {5,981.37)
Provision amount as at March 31, 2021 2,215.12 3,598.09 31,032.35 35,845.56
Mareh 31, 28208
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Retal! Pordolic
ECL staging
Rating Stage 1 S-tagle 2 Sjcage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 234,288.57 7,804.75 15,279.13 25747245
Less: Loss allowance 2,661.25 2,165.47 9,749.16 14,575.87
Carrying amount 231,627.32 5,739.28 5,529.97 242,896.57
{Bs. in Lakhs)
Wholesale Portfolin
ECL staging
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Category 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
ECL ECL ECL
Gross carrying amount 42,861.56 44,098.23 35,652.58 122,612.37
Less: Loss allowance 849.71 1,531.92 19,225.78 21,607.41
Carrying amount 42,011.85 42,566,31 16,426.80 101,004.56
Movemeny is Gross Carrying Amount
- {Rs. in Lakhs}
ECL staging
. Stege 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars 12-menth Lifetime Lifetime Totat
Exposure Exposure Expusure
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 396,869.81 86,648.13 46,185.48 529,807.42
Transfers: -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {5,926.29) 4,679.25 - {1,247.00}
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 §,224.14 {13,817.78) - (4,593.64)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {16,291.25} 12,812.11 {3,478.14}
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 1,008.69 {1,353.19) (344,50}
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 {2,112.08) - 1,743.46 {368.62)
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 135.00 - {269.07) {130.07}
New facility added during the period 10C,455.73 18,284.44 4,305.78 123,045,895
Increase in foan axposure in existing loan facility 842 - 1,044.51 1,052.93
Decrease in ioan exposure in existing loan facility {75,067.46) {10,284.80) {1,294.43) {86,646.63)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs {145,835.72) {16,607.22) {2,494.54) (164,937.47)
Decrease in ‘0an exposure due to write off {705.42} {1,616.51) (9,752.42) {12,074.35}
amount as at March 31, 2020 277,150.13 52,002.98 50,931.70 380,084 82

P LA

£ @r W8 W
i/ A
e NPT AN NG |
[T § ha00e ]
L s bl
Aoyt i

oy




Volkswagan Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

Movement in Pravision

{Rs. in Lakhs}
ECL staging
. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Particulars 12-month Lifetime Lifetime Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure

Provision amount as at March 31, 2019 2,536.18 6,861.94 28,097.41 38,495.52
Transfers: -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {44.67) 831.69 - 787.02
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 3561.58 {2,144.38) - {1,782.80)
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {1,695.63) 4,127.98 2,432.35
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 119.36 (587.34) {467.98}
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 £20.55) - 761.16 740.61
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 2.81 - {134.10} {131.29)
New facility added during the period 1,416.76 863.21 1,754.83 4,034.80
increase in {oan exposure in existing foan facility 829.30 530.82 3,822.51 5,282.62
Decrease in Joan exposure in existing loan facility {48.65) {503.33) {711.70) {1,263.68)
Loans de-recognized during the period other than write-offs {1,519.13) {763.94) {1,639.75) {3,922.82)
Decrease in loan exposure due to write off {2.67) (402.35) {7,616.05) (8,021.07)
Provisian amount as at March 31, 2020 3,510.96 3,697.39 28,974.94 36,183.28
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Volkswagen Finarnce Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended NMarch 31, 2021 {continued)

(it} Linquidity risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk arising from the inability of the Company to meet its financial obligations on time without incurring significant costs. Liguidity risk is a sequential risk that rmay be caused by market disruptions or gredit downgrades which may cause
certain sources of funding to dry up immediately. To guard aganst the risk, management has diversified funding sources & assets are managed with hiquidity in mind, maintaining sufficient un-utilised bank himits. Liquidity risk arises in the general fundimg of the
company activities, Under the guidance of the Asset Leability Committee {ALCO}, the Treasury manages the liquidity and funding of the Cormpany to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet the Company’s known cash funding requirements and
unanticipated needs that may arise. At all times, the Company holds what it considers to be adequate levels of liquidity to repay borrowings and fund new loans, even under stressed conditions.

The Operational Liquidity Committee (OLC) holds meeting once in a fortnight wherein it closely assesses the current liquidity conditions and the liquidity requirements to support repayment & busimess growth.

At glance FY 2021,

VWFPL liguidity has been well managed. As of March 31,2021, VWEPL has funding lines INR 3,489 Crores, Commercial Papers limits of INR 3,000 Crores and ability to further issue bonds of INR 200 Crares based on the ratings for the issue avaifable at hand. NCD
further issuance can be done, If required, It is the endeavor of VWFPL to ensure sufficient free/vacant lines to be able to manage debt capital market oblfigations and smooth payout of bank loans. BNP Paribas has enhanced the credst facility from INR 169 Crores
to iNR 550 Crores, which is not considered in the avatlable funding lines as on 31st March 2021. The bank agreement has been executed before 31st March 2021 but corporate guarantee issued in the month of May 2021, .As on 31st May 2021, the funding lines
are Rs. 3,825 Crores.

VWEPL enjoys top credit ratmg for its CP and NCD instruments. Even during the ongoing pandemic of COVID’19, VWFPL has managed its fiquidity smoothly. Reasonably high concentration in fong term instruments such as NCD and long term bank term loans
ensured less stress, Further, to safeguard the position on liquidity risk, VWFPL created liquidity buffer of iNR 15 Crores in terms of fixed deposits with Banks.

VWEPL has support from its parent. The bank borrowings are guaranteed by the parent Company

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the assets & liabilities at the year and based on residual contractual repayment arrangements (assets & liabilities without a contractual maturity are based on management expectations}).

March 31, 2021 {Rs. in Lakhs}

. Upto 30/31 days fone §  Over 1 monthto 2 Over 2months | Over 3months upto 6] Over 6 months upto I | Over 1year upto 3 | Over 3 years
Particulars Over 5 years Total
month} months upto 3 months months year years upto 5 years

Financial assets .
Cash and cash equivalents 4,739.44 4,739.44
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.47 1.47
Receivables 715.78 715.78
Lodns 40,593.56 6,863.41 6,786.13 19,895.62 38,004.13 88,058.54 48,420.42 38,826.29 287,448.10
Investment 9,019.71 9,019.71
Other Financial assets 6.88 72.41 318.20 1,78 359,27
Total financial assets 46,048.78 6,863.41 6,786.13 19,895.62 38,011.01 88,130.95 48,740,089 47,847.78 302,323.78
Financial liabilities # -
Payables 4,821.21 4,821.21
Oebt securities 15,732.33 15,732.33
Borrowings {Other than debt securities} 59,450.00 18,500.00 - 11,100.00 26,800 GO 6,400.00 - - 122,250.00
Other financial liabilities 698.08 698.08
Total Financial Liabilities 64,969.29 34,232,33 - 11,100.00 26,800.00 €,400.00 - - 143,501.62

The above maturity pattern has been computed taking necessary assumptions regarding repayrnents on account of moratoriurm.
# For financial fiabilities, undiscounted cashflows have been provided in the above maturity bucketing
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes t6 the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 [continued)

March 31, 2020 {Fes. in Lalths}
Particulars Upte 30/3% days fone]  Over Lmonth to 2 Owver Zmonths | Over 3months upto 6 Over 6months upto 1 | Over Lyearupto 3| Over 3 years Over § years Total
month} months upto 3 months months year years upto 5 years

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 34398 - - - - - - - 349.98
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - 1.15 - 1.15
Recejvables 730.57 - - - - - - - 730.57
{oans 32,068.63 9,413.16 9,304.16 32,465.92 51,804,34 136,847.12 57,249.77 50,931.70 380,084,82
invesstment - - ~ - - - - 2,445.84 2,449.85
Other Financial assets 0.56 871 85.87 - 100.96 403.74 0.54 600.36
Total financial assets 33,149.76 9,421.87 9,390.03 + 32,551.79 51,804.34 136,948.08 57,654.66 53,172.72 384,093.24
Financial fiabifities #

Payables 3,430.75 - « - - - - - 3,430.75
Debt securities - 21,459.84 10,648.41 74,939.87 30,000.00 15,000.00 - - 152,048.12
Borrowings {Other than debt securities} 15,570.82 - - ~ 6,300.00 48,800.00 - - 70,670.82
Cther financial liabilities 437.70 190.00 - - 317.29 - - 94499
Total Financial Liabifities 19,439.25 21,649.84 10,648.41 74,939.87 36,300.00 64,117.29 - - 227,094.67

The above maturity pattern has been computed taking necessary assumptions regarding repayments on account of maratorium,
# For financial labilities, undiscounted cashflows have been provided in the above maturity bucketing
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Volkswagan Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

28] Financial instruments ~ Fair value measurement
The fair value is the amount at which financial instruments cowd be sold on fair terms o5 of the reporting date. Where market prices {e.g. for marketable securities)

were available, we have used these prices without modification for measuring fair value. If no market prices were available, the fair values for loans/receivables and
liabilities were catculated by discounting using a maturity-matched discount rate appropriate to the risk.

29,1} Carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities, including their fevels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 . March 31, 2020
Amortised Cost FYTOC FYTPL Amortised Cost FVTOC! FVTPL
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,739.44 - - 349,98 - -
Bank baf?nces other than cash and 147 i ) 1.15 ) )
cash equivalerts
Receivables
{1) Trade receivasles 715.78 - - 730.57 - -
{11} Other recetvaliles - - - - - -
Loans 250,602.54 - - 343,901.53 - -
Investmers 9,019.71 2,449.84
Other Financiat assets 399.27 . - 600.36 - -
Total finandal assels 265,478.21 - - 348,033.44 - -
Financiat Habilities
Payables
{1) Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 23.40 h - 25.72 - h
{ii} total outstand'ng dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small 4,797.81 ~ - 3,405.02 - N
enterprises
{11) Other payables
{i} total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and srall enterprises ) ) ) ) ) )
(i1} total outsianding dues of creditors
other then ricro enterprises and small - - N - - -
enterprises
Debt securities 15,732.33 - - 152,048.12 - -
Borrowings {Other than debt 122,250.00 - - 70,670.82 - -
Other financial lisbilities 698.08 - - 3844.99 - -
Tota! financie! Babilities 143,501.62 - - 227,094.68 - -

29.2) Fair Value:

The Company does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities which are valued at fair value. Fair value of the the financial assets and financial liabilities
which are not myeasured at fair vatue {including their levels in their fair value hierarchy, are presented below). When the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value, the fair value of the financial assets or Habilities have been not disclosed. For all financial instruments other than Loans, investment and
Debt securities, the carrying value and fair value are approximately close to esch other.
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{i} Fair value of financials assets and labilities

March 31, 2021 {Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars Carrying amount Fair vaiue
Amotised Cost FYTOC FVITPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 287,448.10 - - - - 280,847.31
Debt securities {Non convertible 15,732.33 } ) } 15,732.33
debentures}
Investmernt 8,019.71 8,710.48
March 31, 2030 {Rs. in Lakhs)
particulars Carrying amount Fair value
Amotised Cost TOU FYTPL tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans 380,084.82 - - - - 372,384.16
Debt securities {Non convertible 152,048.12 ) ) ) 153,204.10 ;
debentures)
investment 2,449.84 2,450.00
{i} Fair value of Statement of Financial Position is presented below:
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Carrying Value Falr Value | Carrying Velue Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,739.44 4,735.44 349.38 345.58
Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents 1.47 1.47 1.15 1.15
Recelvables
{1} Trade receivables 715.78 715.78 730.57 730.57
{11} Other receivables - - -
Loans 250,602.54 280,847.31 343,901.53 372,354.16
Invesiments $,019.71 9,710.48 2,449.84 2,450.00
Other Financal assets 389.27 3489.27 500.36 600.36
Total finencial assets 265,478.21 256,413.75 348,033.44 376,526.23
Financial Habilities
Payables
{1} Trade payables
{i} total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 23.40 - 25.72 25.72
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than m'crs enterprises and small
ernterprises 4,797.81 4,757.81 3,405.02 3,405.02
{11} Other payables - - -
{i) total outstarding dues of micro
enterprises sad small enterprises - - -
{ii) total ouzstanding dues of creditors
other than reicrn enterprises and smal
enterprises - - -
Debt securities 15,732.33 15,732.33 152,048.12 153,204.10
Borrowings {Other than debt
securities) 122,250.00 122,250.00 70,670.82 70,670.82
Other financial Hiabilities 6498.08 £58.08 94499 844.99
Total financie! Gabilities 143,501.62 143,478.21 227,894,68 228,250.66
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Valuation technigues used to determine fair value:

The Comparny’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established cantrol framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a risk team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Leve! 3 fair values, and reports directly te the chief financial officer

The Company uges the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation technigque:

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories L.e. Lavel 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities {level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level
3 measurements}.

The hierarchies used are as follows:

Level 1: Financial instruments measured using quoted prices and that are traded in active market are categorized under level 1. The company has no financial
instrumeants which are categorized as level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an sctive market is determined using observable market data and not the entity specific
astimates. The Non Convertible debentures which are classified as debit secu-ities have been categorized as level 2.

Level 3: If. one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obiservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The instruments are valued based on
quoted prices for the similar instruments but for which significant observables adjustients are required to reflect the difference between the instruments. Loans
have been included in level 3 category.

Loans

The fair vatues of loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discounted cash flow models. The discount rates are based on internal
estimation and consequently for the purposes of level disclosures categorized under Level 3. The discount factor used for fair valuation is derived using a
combination of interpolated risk-free interest ratas, risk premium, service fee and interpolated funding spreads as on valuation date. input data used to carry out
the fair valuation covers portfolio dats, expected future cashflows, provision dats and live LAN level data for each product in the portfolio.

Debt securities

The fair values of the Company’s non convertible debentures are calculated based on a discounted cash flow model. The discount factor used for fair valuation is
derived using 2 combination of interpolated risk-free interest rates and credit-spreads of the Company as on valuation date. Input datz used to carry out the fair
valuation covers portfolio deta and expected future cashflows for each product in the portfolio.

Transfers between Levels
There are no tranfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 since there are no financial instruments at fair velue under the category
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

36) Capital

Lapital management

The primary objectives of the capital management policy is to ensure that the Company continucusly complies with capital
reguirements required by regulator, maintains strong credit ratings and healthy debt to equity ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of its activities. In order to fund growth or comply with regulatory capital requirement, Company depends
on internal accrual or may raise additional capital. Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharehoiders,
return capital to shareholders.

The company uses the capital adequacy requirement as prescribed by the regulator as benchmark to monitor its capital
reguirements. The status of capital adequacy requirements are mentioned below:

Regulatory capital

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31,
icula
2021 2020

det Own Fund (Tier 1) 124,708.74 122,384.95
Tier i 3,421.23 4,525.54
Total capital 128,129.97 126,910.49
Risk weighted assets 273,698.76 362,043.37
Tier | Copital ratio 45.56% 33.80%
Tier §§ Capital ratio 1.25% £.25%
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,

2021 {continued}

31} Lease

Right to use of Asset

{Rs. in Lakhs}

. March 31, 2021
Particulars
Property Rent
As at April 1, 2019 983.06
Additions (Note 8) 202.88
Depreciation expense 521.34
As at March 31, 2020 674.60
As at April 1, 2020 674.60)
Additions (Note 8} {net) 1,808.20
Depreciation expense 517.91
Delation 109.26
As at March 31, 2021 1,855.63
Lease Liability
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Barticulars March 31, 2021
As 3t April 1, 2019 386.15
Additions 202.88
Aceretion of interest 71.42
Payments 515.52
As at March 31, 2020 544.92
As at April 1, 2020 54492
Additions 1,665.91
Accretion of interest 43.05
Payments 524.23
Deletion 107.55
As at March 31, 2021 1,722.10
Totat amount recognised in profit or loss {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depraciation expense of right-of-use assets 517.91 521.34
interest expense on lease liabilities 43.05 71.42
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in
other expenses) -
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
{included in other expenses) -
Yariable lease payments (included in other
expenses) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 560.97 592.76

S
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. Some of the leases contain extension and termination options. Such options are considered while
éﬁg}t&rmining the lease term only. On this basis no such amounts included in the measurement of
“Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021.
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)}

32) Foraign Currency transactions

{Rs. ir Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended |Year Ended
March 31, 2021 |March 31, 2020
{a)Reimbursement of Expatriate Salaries 216.55 375.08
{b)information Technology Support Charges 2,092.03 2,704.00
{c} Stock Audit Charges 33.58 16.53
{d} Corporate Gaurantee Fee 114.39 85.88
(e} Treasury Support Service 31.14 88.31
{f} Travelling Expenses N 12.55
(g} Services/Consultancy Fees 87.40 37.25
{n) Purchase of software - -
{i) Investment expense R 7.24
{i} Reimbursement of Impat Salaries (55.01) -
The details of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the year-end are as follows:
A} Payable® {Rs. in Lakhs}
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A ti Arrrount in
Foreign Currency indian Rupees mour: " Indian Rupees o ?‘ !
. Foreign . Foreign
eguivalent equivalent
Currency Currency
EURC 806.36 9.27 730.14 8.84
GBP - - 3.49 0.04
SEK 8.88 1.06
B} Recsjvable
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- i
Foreign Currency Indian Rupees Amou?t in | | dian Rupees Amouﬁﬁ in
) Foreign . Foreign
equivalent equivalent
Currency Currency
EURC 55.01 0.64 38.40 0456

* Note: The details of unhedged foreign currency exposure incluces year end provisions




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

33) Related Party Disclosures

I Related Parties and nature of relationship
i. Where conirol exists

a. Uhtimate Holding Company Volkswagen AG, Germany
b. Helding Campany Volkswagen Finance Overseas B.V,Netherland
¢. Intermediate Holding Company Yolkswagen Financial Services A.G, Germany

ii. Other Belated Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

a. Fellow Subsidiaries Skoda Auto Volkswagen India Private Limited, india
Votkswagen Pon Financial Services B.V., Netherlands
Scania Commercial Vehicles India Pvt. Ltd
Volkswagen IT Services India Private Limited
Volkswagen Bank GMBH
VWEFS Digital Solutions GMBH
Volkswagen Finans Sverige AB
VW Software Asset Management GMBH
Wolkswagen Dogus Finansman, Turkey

b Subsidiary Kuwy Technologies Private Limited

b. Directors and Key Management Personnel
Mr. Gokhan Cinar, Chief Finance Office and Managing Director {till
February 28, 2021 )
Mr. Ashish Deshpande, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Cfficer
Mr. Nobert Dorn, Non Executive Director
Mr. Jorg Thielemann, Additional Director{wef March 1, 2021)
Mr. Subramanian Jambunathan, independent Director
Mr. Rupa Rajul Vora, independent Director
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il} Transactions with related parties as mentioned above:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Holdlrg Company@ tellow Subsithiaries Subsidiary Company Total
April 1 2020 to March]  April 12019to  [April 1 2020 to March]  April 1 2019 to Aprit 12020 to Aprit 1 2019 1o April 12020 to April 1 2019 to
31,2021 Warch 31, 2020 31,2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31,2020
1. Expenditure
a} Purchase of goods / receiving of services
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G 246.78 335.10 - - - 246.78 335.10
Volkswagen Pon Financials Services - - 41,25 - - - 41.25
Skoda Auto Volkswagen India Private Limited - 46,75 119.17 - - 46.75) 119.17
Volkswagen Dogus Finansman, Turkey - 129.68 186.60 - - 129.68 186.60]
Volkswagen IT Services india Private Limited - 18.83 59.41 - - 18.83] 59.41
VWFS Digital Solutions GMBH - 1,922.28 2,333.25 - 1,922.24 2,333.25
Volkswagen Finans Sverige AB - 8.94 54.68 - - 8.94 54.68
Volkswagen Bank GmbH - 31.14 88.31 - - 31.14} 88.31
Volkswagen AG 2.06 2,13 - - - - 2.06 2,13
VW Software Asset Management GMBH 167.68 167.68 -
Kuwy Technology Service Private Limited 32.42] 32.42
Total 248.84 337.23 2,325.34 2,882.66 - 32.42 2,5761:15 3,252.32
b} Purchase of Assets
Skoda Auto Volkswagen india Private Limited - - 38.48 50.57 - - 38.48! 50.57
VWFS Digital Svlutions GMBH - 133.26 - - - 133.26
Total - - 38.48 183.82 . “ 38.48) 183.82
2. Income
a} Pre Received Interest Subvention income
Skoda Auto Voltkswagen India Private Limited 72.25 299.72 72.25 299.72
Totai - - 72.25 299.72 - - 72.25 299.72
b} Brand Support Fees .
Skoda Autc Volkswagen India Private Limited 1,532.37 2,777.07 1,532.37 2,777.07
Total - - 1,532.37 2,777.07 - - 1,532.37 2,777.06]
c} Other sale of goods / rendering of services
Skoda Auto Volkswagen India Private Limited - - 57.82 81.48 - - 57.82] 81.48]
Volkswagen IT Services India Private Limited - - 12.23 - - - 12.23
Seania Commercial Vehicles India Private Limited - - 25.95 25.95 -
Kuwy Techniology Service Private Limited 0.99 0.99 -
VW Credit Canada, inc 55.01 55,01
Total - . 138.78} 93.70] 0.99 - 139.77 93.70
d} Leasing Income
Volkswagen IT Services India Private Limitedf * / - - 43.88 - 43.88
Total 1 - - 43.88 - 43.88)
VAN
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3. Managerial Remuneration $
Gokhan Cinar {Till Feb 28, 2021}
Ashish Deshpande

Total

4, [irector Fees

Rupa Vora

Jambunathan Subramanian
Mrinal Chandran

Total

237.94
108.71
346,65

13.00]
10.00

23.00,

31594
77.80
393.70,

13.00
7.00
4.00

24,00

$ incentives are considered on payment basis
@ Includes Parent Company of Holding Company




iii} Year end balances of related parties as mentionad above:

Holding Company® Fellow Subsidiaries Subsidiary Company Total
Balances
As on As on As on Ason As on Ason As on Ason
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Investment in subsidiary
Equity share capital 8,514.71 1,833.00; 8,514.71 1,833.00
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 505.00 505.00] 505.00 505.00
Payables
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G. 149.08 480.65 - - - - 149.08 480.65
Skoda Auto Volkswagen India Private Limited - - 3,007.34 - - - 3,007.34 -
Volkswagen Pon Financials Services - - 42.64 - - - 42.64
Volkswagen Dogus Finansman - - 144.72 223.58 - - 144.72 223.58
VW Financial Services Digital Salutions GMBH - - 387.61 719.46 - - 387.61 719.46
Volkswagen Finans Sverige AB v - 8.88 - - - 8.88 -
Volkswagen Bank GmbH ~ - 12.39 - - - 12.38 -
Volkswagen [T Services India Private Limited - - 12.68 3.74 - . 12.66 3.74
Volkswagen Software Asset Management GMBH 110.51 - 110.51 -
Volkswagen AG 2.06 - . 2,06
Kuwy Technology Service Private Limited 1.56 4,93 1.56 4,93
Reeeivables - -
Skoda Auto Volkswagen tndia Private Limited - - 182.68 232.47 - - 182.68 232.47
Volkswagen Financial Services A.G. 9.36 38.40 - - - - 9.36 38.40
Scania Commercial Vehicles india Pvt. Ltd - - 23.14 - - 23.14 -
VW Credit Canada, inc - - 55.01 - - 55.01 -
Kuwy Technology Service Private Limited - - - - - - - -

Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany has given corporate guarantee for credit lines availed by the Company from various banks. The outstanding amount against such credit lines as at year end is Rs. 122,250 fakhs
{Previous Year: Rs. 70,670.82 lakhs). For this guarantee, Company has paid commission to Volkswagen Financial Services A.G., Germany.

# As part of wholesale funding arrangement with dealer, the company makes payment to related parties on behalf of dealers. Accordingly, the amount of these transaction during the year has not been shown under the category
of 'Transaction during the year'.

@ JaclidEEPacent Company of Holding Compan
© JneaeE Rorent Company g Company
r e 38 e




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

——

34} Segment Reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organised intc business units based on its type of products and has two reportable segments, as

tollows:
- Retail Finance
~ Jealer Finance

The Chief Operating Decision Maker {“CODM”), is the managing director of the Company who evaluates the performance and allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicatars by operating segments. Operating profit or loss is reported as the primary key performance
indicator to the chief operzting decision-makers. The information made available to management for management purposes is based on the
sarvys accounting policies as those used for external financial reporting.

fetail Finance: Providing loans to customers for purchase of YW Group brand vehicles i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda, Audi, Porsche, Lambhaorgini MAN

and Scania.

Dealer Finance: providing New Car Unit Funding, Term Loans and Used Cars funding to the dealers of VW Group brand i.e. Volkswagen, Skoda,

Audi Porsche, Lamborghini and MAN .

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particuiars March 31, 2021
Retal Finance Dealer Finance Unallocated Total

Ravenue
Bxternal 18,801.74 11,792.20 3,640.21 35,234.14
Inter segment
Totat 18,801.74 11,792.20 3,640.21 35,234.14
Segment £xpenses 18,280.11 8,467.35 4,321.01 32,078.47
Segment Result - profit / {loss} 511.63 3,324.84 {680.80) 3,155.67
Profit/{Loss) before Tax - - - 3,155.67
Tax Expense {Including Deferred Tax) - - - 926.75
Profitf{ioss) After Tax before extraordinary ftems - - - 2,228.92
Extraordinary ltems -
ProfitfiLoss) After Tax - - - 2,228.32
Oiher Information
Carvying Amount of Segment Assets 154,971.73 88,159.85 30,368.45 283,501.03
Carrying Amount of Segment Liabilities 82,223.78 60,216.58 7,161.70 149,602.06
Capia: Expenditure 1,178.88 824.87 - 2,002.75
Degreciation / Amortisation 456.13 318.16 ~ 775.29




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Wiarch 31, 2021 {continued)

{Rs, in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2020

Retail Finance Dealer Finance Unallocated Totat
Revenue
Oaternal 27,243.30 16,739.14 4,246.87 48,225.41
inter segment - - - -
Total 27,243.30 15,735.14 4,246.97 48,239.41
Segment Expenses 25,570.59 15,441.79 5,443.28 46,455.66
Segment Result - profit J {loss) 167271 1,287.35 {1,186.31) 1,773.74
BrofitfiLoss) before Tax - - - 1,773.74
Tax Expense {Including Deferred Tax) - - - 4,220.16
Profit/{Loss) After Tax before extraordinary Items - - - -2,446.42
Extragrdinary ltems - - - ~
rofit/iLoss) After Tax - - - -2,845.42
ither information
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 244,148.09 101,676.28 17,226.94 363,051.31
Carrying Armount of Segment Liabilities 152,087.39 72,381.25 6,903.40 231,382.04
Capital Expenditure 272.60 128.76 - 402.36
Depreciation / Amortisation 578.80 275.51 ~ 854.30

{i; Unaflocated revenue mainly consists of Income from insurance business
{fi] Unallocated expenses comprise of expenses towards corporate sotial responsibility, directors sitting fees, conveyance expenses, foreign

expense loss and other administratative expenses.

{17} Segment assets comprise mainly of retail loans, dealer finance loans, interest accrued on retail loans and dealer finance loans, receivable from
inzerest subvention . Unallocated assets represent mainfy other foans and advances, defered tax assets cash and cash equivalents, advante tax and
TOS and security deposits. Segment fiabilities include payable for retail finance and dealer finance, trade and other payables and borrpwings.
Unzliocated liabilities mainly include outstanding expenses and statutory liabilities. Carrying value of Segment assets includes Asset held for sale of

Rs. 13C.41 Lakhs (Previous vear: Rs. 134.29 Lakhs) under Dealer Fingnce segment.

{ivs The Company does not have revenue from its customer who individually contributes more than 10 percent of the Company's revenue.




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes 1o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 {continued)

35} Disclosure on Restructured Advances

Year ended March 2021

. Type of Restructuring -> Others
5t Mo Assel Classification = Standard | Sub Standard | Doubtful Loss Tatal
Details
Restructured Accounts as on April 1iNo. of borrowers - 3 1 4 8
of the Financial Year (opening i
1 ) Armournt qutstanding - 1,031.39 753.03 3,373.80 5,158.22
figures)
Provision therecn - 580.55 281.94 1,216.18 2,078.68
No. of borrowers 44 1 - - 45
Fresh restructuring during the year -
2 Amount outstanding 3,584.78 10.12 - - 3,594.89
Provision therzon 166.17 4.33 - - 170.45
No. of borrowers ~ - - -
3 Recovery Amount outstanding {5.18} {13.35) - {2,495.51} {2,514.02}
Provision theraon - 10.01 - {370.71} {360.70)
No. of horrowers - - - - -
Upgradations to restructured
4 standard category during thelAmount outstanding “ - - . .
Financial Year
Provision thereorn - - - - -
Restructured  standard  advances|ng. of horrowers - 1 . (1) 2
which cease to attract higher
provisioning and / or additional risk
5 weight at the end of the Financial] Amount outstanding . {209.63} “ {(9.08) (218.71)
Year and hence need not be shown
as restructured standard advances at
the beginning of the next Financial Provision theresn R (64.38) : (5.02) (73.40)
Year
No. of borrowers - - - - -
Downgradations  of  restructured
5 accounts during the Financial Year  {Amount outstandirg - - 53.08 1.60 54.68
Provision thereon - - 16.82 1.60 18.42
No. of borrowers N - - - -
Write-offs of restructured accounts
7 during the Financial Year Amount outstanding - (36.77) - {770.80} {807.58)
Provision thereon - {36.77) - (770.80) {807.58}
Restructured Actounis gs on March No. OF borrowers 24 3 1 3 51
31 of the Financial Year
8 |{closing figures) Amount outstanding 357961 781.76 806.11 100.00 5,267.49
Provision thereon 166.17 493.73 298.77 67.26 1,025.92

Maote: Since the disclosure of restructured advance accounts pertains to section "Others”, the first two sections, namely, "Under CDR Mechanism"
and *Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism” as per format preseribed i the guidelines are not included above.
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Yemar ended March 2020

] Type of Restructuring > Others
5 o Asset Classification > Standard | Sub Standard | Doubtful Loss Total
Details &
Restructured Accounts as on April 1]No. of borrowers - 2 1 3 6
1 of the Financial Year ({(opening
figures) Amount outstanding - 3,823.31 1.15 66.99 3,891.45
Provision thereon - B24.73 1.15 22.14 848.01
. R No. of borrowers - 3 ~ - 3
Fresh restructuring during the year
2 Armount outstanding - 1,031.39 - - 1,031.39
Provision thergon - 580.55 - - 580.55
No. of borrowers - - - - -
3 Recovery Amount outstanding - - - {17.99) {17.99)
Provision thereon - - - 26.79 26.79
No. of bo e - - - . R
Upgradations 1o restructured 0. of borrowers
£ standard category during theiAmount outstanding - - N . .
Financial Year
Provision thereon - - - ~ -
Restructured  standard  advances{No. of borrowers - - -1 - (1)
which cease to attract higher
provisioning and / or additional risk
5 weight at the end of the Financialiamount outstanding R R (1.15) R {1.15)
Year and hence need not be shown
as restructured standard advances at
the beginning of the next Financial
Year Provision thereon - - {1.15} - {1.13}
No. of borrowers - {2) 1 1 -
Downgradations  of  restructured
€ accounts during the Financial Year  {Amount outstanding - {3,823.31) 753.02 3,324.79 254.51
Pravision thereon - (824.73) 281.94 1,167.26 624.48
Write-offs of restructured accounts| of borrowers . ‘ - - -
7 during the Financial Year Amount outstanding N . . . .
Provision thereon - - - - -
No. of borrowers - 3 1 4 8
Restructured Accounts as on March
8 |31 of the Financiai Year Amount outstanding - 1,031.39 753.03 3,373.80 5,158.27
{closing figures)
Provision thereon - 580.55 281.84 1,216.19 2,078.68

Meme: Sace the disdlosure of restructured advance accounss pertains 1o section "Others”, the first two sections, namely, "Under CDR Mechanism™
and "Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism" as per format prescribad in the guidelines are not included above.

.
i,

foers
il -
=,

5,
i
e

ettt




‘olkswagen Finance Private Limited

jotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

36)

37)

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 {'MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 23.40 25.72

remaining unpaid as at year end
interest due to suppliers registered under the M5MED Act and remaining - -
unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, - -
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers - -
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year '

{nterest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under - -
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

intgrest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for - -
payments already made
Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - -

The above information regarding small scale industrial undertakings and micro, small and medium enterprises have
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
company.

Contingent Liabilities and other Capital Commitments

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31; 2020
Disputed claims not acknowledged as debt 186.56 156.72
Service tax matters under appeal 5,071.85 5,071.85
income tax matters under appeal 673.55 89.20

The Company is of the opinion that the above demands are not tenable and expects to succeed in its appeals /
defense

Service Tax Matter

Company received show cause notice from Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Service Tax demanding service tax
of Rs. 2,537.76, Lakhs on certain transactions. The Company has disputed the said show cause notice and started
paying the service tax on those transactions under protest. The Commissioner of Service Tax had passed order dated
Eebruary 20, 2017 confirming the stand taken by the department to pay service tax along with interest and penaity.
The Company has disputed the order passed by the Commissioner of Service Tax and has filed appeal before The
Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal {CESTAT} in the financial year 2017-18.
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Accordingly, service tax matter in respect of which assessment pending is Rs. 5,071.85 Lakhs {March 31, 2020 Rs.
5,071.85 Lakhs) and the amount paid under protest Rs. 2,534.08 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 2,534.08 Lakhs). This is
being disputed by the Company and not provided for.

Income Tax Matter

in respect of Income Tax matter, in FY 2015-16 the Company had received show cause notice for non deduction of
withholding tax on payment to non-residents. The company has disputed the said show cause notice and paid the
disputed liability under protest. The Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) has passed ocrder confirming the stand taken
by the department to pay withholding tax along with interest and penalty. The Company is disputing the said order
and has filed an appeal with the High Court. The Company has also received penalty order under section 271C of The
Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been disputed by the Company and the appeal against the same has been filed with
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal).

For FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17, Transfer Pricing Officer / Assessing Officer had made an adjustment for informaticn
Technology Support Services (ITSS) availed from its Associated Enterprise (AE). The assessment orders were passed for
both years treating the arm's length price of ITSS transaction as Nil. The TPO / AO replying on GECD guidelines on Intra
Group Services stated in the order that assessee did not satisfy the Need-Evidence-Benefit test and the arm's length
price (ALP) was determined to be Nil. The Company is disputing the said order and has filed an appeal with the
Commission of Income Tax (Appeals).

For FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17, the Company has paid 20% of the total demand tax raised for each of the years. The
tax on IT Support Services adjustment of Rs. 266.21 Lakhs {March 31, 2020 Rs. Nil) and Rs. 318.14 Lakhs {March 31,
2020 Rs. Nif) for FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17 respectively are disputed by Company and hence not provided for.

Accordingly, Income tax matter in respect of which appeals have been filed is Rs. 673.55 Lakhs {March 31, 2020 Rs.
83.20 Lakhs) and Rs. 44.60 Lakhs {March 31, 2020 Rs. 44.60 Lakhs) had been paid under protest. This is being disputed
by the Company and hence not provided for,

Capital Commitments :
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed is INR 40.38 lakhs {March 31, 2020: NiL)

Amounts sanctioned but not disbursed: Nil { March 31, 2020: Rs. 1,997.78 Lakhs)

Corporate social responsibility expenses
(i} Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: (Rs. in Lakhs) 72.13
{ii} Amount spent during the year on: {Rs. in Lakhs})

Particulars Paid Yet to be paid Total
Construction, acquisition of any asset Nil Nil Nit
On purposes other than the above* : 75.00 - » 75.90
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Vollsswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued)

39)

(i)
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Tax expense

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Particulars

March 31, 2021
(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Current tax expense

Current period

Changes in estimation related to prior years
Total current tax expense (A}

Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Reduction in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Change in recognised deductible temporary differences
Deferred tax expense (B}

Tax expense for the year (Aj+(B)

809.09 3.20

- 47.82
809.09 51.02
117.66 527.23

- 3,641.90
117.66 4,169.14
926.75 4,220.16

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

{(Amount in lakhs}

Year ended March 31,2021

Year ended March 31,2020

Particulars Before tax Tax (expense}/ benefit Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
benefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset} 1.03 (0.26) 0.77 (11.10) 2.79 (8.31)
Tota! 1.03 (0.26) 0.77 (11.10) 2.79 (8.31)

Miben s, ’:




(iii)

Movement in deferred tax balances

{Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021
Particulars Opening balance Recognised in profit or loss Recognised Net Deferred tax Deferred tax
March 31, 2020 in OCH asset liability
Deferred tax asset/{liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 92.64 (4.83) - (4.83) 87.80 -
Loans 307.84 {107.41) - {107.41) 200.42
Security deposits - . - - . .
Borrowings - - - N - -
Employee benefits 320.33 (209.01) - {209.01} 111.32 .
Equity-settied share-based payments - - - - - -
Deferred income - - - - - -
Provisions 9,106.61 166.68 - 166.68 9,273.29 -
Unabsorbed Depreciation . - - - - -
Other items ' {975.89) 16.40 - 36.40 . (939.49)
Total 8,851.52 {118.18) - (118.18) 9,672.83 {939.49)
{Rs. in Lalths)
March 31, 2020
Particulars Opening balance Recognised in profit or loss Recognised Net Deferred tax | Deferred tax
March 31, 2019 in OCI asset liahility
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 114.77 (22.13} - (22.13}) 92.64 -
indexation benefit on land and shares - - - - - -
Loans 400.77 (92.93) - {92.93} 307.84
Security deposits 48.81 (48.81) - (48.81) - -
Borrowings - - - - - -
Employee benefits 367.21 (46.88) (2.79) {49.67) 317.54 -
Equity-settfed share-based payments - - - - - -
Deferred income - - - - - -
Provisions 13,451.88 {4,345.27) - (4,345.27) 9,106.61 -
Unabsorbed Depreciation - - - - - -
Other items {1,365.57) 389.68 - 389.68 - (975.89)
13,017.87 (4,166.34) {2.79) {4,169.14) 9,824.62 (975.89)




{iv)

(V)

Effective Tax Rate
X ) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars . ,
{Rs. in Lakhs) {85, in Lakhs)
Profit before tax
Profit Before Tax 3,155.67 1,773.74
Tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Tax on profits 794.22 446.41
Tax effect of:
CSR expenses 24.77 36,70
interest on Late Payment of TDS 1.15 9.40
Prior Period Expenses - -
tax on perquisits u/s 10{10CC} 3.58 19.75
Others 103.03 11.08
Total income tax expenses 926.75 523.36
Effective tax rate 29.37% 29.51%

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes fevied by the same tax authority.

Significant management judgment is reguired in determining provision for incame tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverabilily of deferred income tax assets.
The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable incorne in which the refevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax

assets will be recovered.

Tax Balances

Particulars

As at March 31,2021

As at March 31,2020

w@%ﬂl&;&lﬁ) lakhs}
N S,

Current Tax Assets (Net)
(Net of Provision of March 31, 2021 Rs. 4919.67 lakhs March 31, 2019 Rs.
4110.58 takhs)

Current Tax Liabilities (Met)
{Net of Advance Tax of March 31, 2021 Rs. 15336.96 lakhs March 31, 2019

Sk

3,096.88

2,011.57

1,491.89

1,085.22

Total

(1,085.31)

(406.66)




Wolkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the iStanda!one Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

48} Calculation of Impairment Reserve as per RBI Notification No. RB{/2313-20/170 BOR {NBFC).CC.PD.N0.105/22.10.106/2019-20

{Rs. in Lakhs}

Asset Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Bifference
Asset Classification as e {Provisions} as ) Provisions required | between ind AS
classification as | Amount as per Ind . Net Carrying Amount .
per RBI Norms per Ind AS 108 AS 168 reguired under Ind as per {RACP norms | 109 provisions and
AS 108 {RACP norms
1 2 3 4 (5)3=(3)-(4) 6 =145}
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 203,726.36 2,215.12 201,511.84 814.91 1,400.21
Standard Stage 2 31,218.75 3,598.09 27,620.66 124.87 3473.21
Subtotal 234,945,71 5,813.20 229,132.50 939.78 4,873.42
fNon-Performing Assets {NPA)
Sub Standard Stage3s | 16,235.79 5,008.12 | 10,137.68 | 1,623.58 | 4,474.54
Soubtful 1 Stage 3 15,385.48 8,149.94 7,235.54 12,286.07 (4,146.13)
Doubtful 2 Stage 3 16,171.47 13,549.36 2,622.11 13,754.66 {205.30}
Doubtful 3 Stage 3 1,976,890 1,658.21 317.69 1,829.26 {178.05)
Subtotal 33,533.85 23,358.51 10,175.34 27,879.99 {4,521.48)
Loss ] Stage3 | 2,732.76 1,575.73 | 1,157.03 | 2,732.76 | {1,157.03)
Subtotal for NPA | | 52,502.40 31,032.35 | 21,470.04 | 32,236.33 | {1,203.58)
Total Stage 1 203,725.25 2,215.12 201,511,84 814.91 1,406.21
Stage 2 31,218.75 3,598.09 27,620.66 124,87 3,473.21
Stage 3 52,502,408 31,832.35 21,470.04 32,236.33 {1,203.98}
Total 287,448,108 36,845.56 250,602.54 33,176.11 3,668.45
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olkswagen Finance Private Limited

otes o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

41)

i.

DBisclosures under Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Sovernance {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015

Capitat
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars R N
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}

a} CRAR (%) 46.81%) 35.05%
b} CRAR —~Tier | Capital (%) 45.56% 33.80%
¢} CRAR —Tier I Capital (%) 1.25% 1.25%
d) Amount of subordinated debt raisec as Tier-H capita - -
e} Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrument - -

The Company has applied zero risk weight to the un-drawn credit facility in computation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio
censidering the same is uniconditionally cancellable by the Company at any point of time.

Additinnel Disclosures

Provisions and Contingencies

Under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss Marc!:x 31,2021 Marcf} 31,2020
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
a) Provisions for depreciation on investment - -
b} Expected Credit Loss 662.27 {2,300.39}
c} Provision made towards income tax [including Deferred 926.75 4,220.16
Tax)}
g} Other Provision and Contingencies 81.05 119.95
Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
Concentration of Advances
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particutars ) i
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 68,522.99 74,693.27
Total Outstanding Advances 287,448.10 380,084.82
Percentage to Total Advances 23.84% 19.65%

Concentration of Exposures

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Particulars
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 92,346.39 102,778.35
Total Exposure to Customers 357,598.24 493,079.35
Parcentage to Total Exposure 25.82% 20.84%
Congentration of NPAs
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars N .
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
Total Quistanding to four largest borrowers / customars 17,198.64 18,237.63
i Totat Quistanding Advances 287,448.10 380,084.82
Percentzge to Total Advances 5.98% 4.80%
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otkswagen Finance Private Limited

otes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

Sector-wise NPAs

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)
Sectors
Amount Percentage to Total Amount Percentage to
Advances Totsl Advances
a) Agriculture & allied activities - -
b} MSME - -
¢} Corporate borrowers - -
o} Services - -
e} Unsecured personal loans - -
£} Auto foans and other related loans 52,502.40 18.26% 50,931.70 13.40%
g_}z Other personal ioans - -
iiovermnent of NPAs
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars
{Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

a) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 8.37% 6.25%
B} Movement of NPAs (Gross)

i} Opening balance 50,931.70 46,189.48

ii} Additions during the year 16,524.51 20,196.00

iii} Reduction during the year (14,953.81) (15,453.78)

iv} Closing balance 52,502.40 50,931.70
o} Movement of Net NPAs

i) Opening balance 21,956.77 17,092.07

i} Additions during the year 7,052.64 9,538.57

iii} Reduction during the year {(7,539.37) {4,674.88)

iv} Closing balance 21,470.04 21,956.77
[} Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions

on standard assets)

i} Opening halance 28,974.94 29,097.41

ii} Provisions made during the year 9,471.86 10,656.42

iii) Write-off (5,542.99) (7,467.76)

iv} write-back of excess provisions {1,871.45) {3,311.13)

v} Closing balance 31,032.35 28974.54

it Customer Complaints
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars 3
{Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs)

a} No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the 1 -
b} No. of complaints received during the year 703 777
2 No. of complaints redressed during the year 704 776
d} No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - 1
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otkswagen Finance Private Limited

otes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {continued)

v

i

viii

Registration obtained from other financial sector reguiators

The Company has obtained Registration No. CA0142 to act as a Corporate Agent under the Insurance Act 1938 (IV of

1938} from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority [IRDA).

Distlosure of Penalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of india (RBY} and other regulators

Mo penalties imposed by RBI or any other Regulator.

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Rating Agency: India Ratings & Reaserch Private Limited

Buring the year, Company has obtained below mentioned credit ~ating on different dates for different products.

Date of Rating Rating Agency Commercial Paper Others
25-3ul-20 India Ratings & Research Private Limited IND A1+ IND AAA {Long Term}
& IND A1+ {Short
Term)
§7-Aug-20 ICRA Limited ICRA A1+ NA
27-Aug-20 India Ratings & Research Private Limited IND A1+ NA
08-8ep-20 ICRA Limited ICRA Al+ NA
18-Nov-20 ICRA Limited ICRA A1+ NA
18-Nov-20 india Ratings & Research Private Limited IND AL+ NA
22-Jan-21 ICRA Limited ICRA AL+ NA
22-Jan-21 India Ratings & Research Private Limited IND Al+ NA
i8-Mar-21 india Ratings & Research Private Limited IND A1+ NA
{9-Mar-21 ICRA Limited ICRA Al+ NA
. . Non Convertible
Date of Rating Rating Agency Debentures Others
23-3al-20 India Ratings & Research Private Limited IND AAA/STABLE |IND AAA {Long Term}
& IND Al+ {Short
Term)
Date of Rating Rating Agency Bank Rating Others
23-5a-20 India Ratings & Research Private Limited Long term Loan IND AAA/STABLE
rating {IND
AAA/STABLE)
23-Jul-20 india Ratings & Research Private Limited Short term loan IND Al+
rating (IND Al+)

Extent of financing of parent company products

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Barticulars {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs)
=S i h tfi t

Loan outstanding as at year end out of the amount financed to parent 28153178 369,876.19
carmpany products
Comgpany Portfolio 287,448.10 380,084.82
Percentage of financing for parent product upon Company's portiolic 97.94% 97 31%
investments:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
Gross Vaiue of Investments 9,019.71 2,449.84
Provision for Depreciation on Investments - -

RS vy

@fz«g%gg“ﬁg&:g@ Investments 9,019.71 2,849.84
WisvEmantpRarovisions held towards depreciation on investments - -




Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

in. Maturity patiern of certain items of assets and liabilities

As on March 31, 2021

Notes to the Siandalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 {cortinued)

(Rs. in Lakhs})

particulars Upto 30/31 days | Over 1 month to 2| Over 2 months mug;]e;:pto Qver 6 months Over 1 year upto 3 Over 3 years Over 5 years Total
(one month} months upto 3 months upto 1 year years upto 5 years
6 months
Liabilities
Borrowings from banks
Working capital Demand Loans 37,500.00 18,500.00 - - - - - - 56,000.00
Bank Overdraft 17,450.00 17,450.00
Long Term Loans 4,500.00 - - 11,100.00 26,800.00 6,400.00 - - 48,800.00
Market borrowings
Commercial Papers - - - - - ~ - - -
Non Convertible Nehentires - 15,732,323 « - - - - - 15,732.33
Assets «
Loans
Advances™@ - Retail Std Asset 5,459.66 5,371.67 5,296.04 15,409.86 26,308.85 65,683.79 21,851.98 3,215.82 148,597.66
Advances* - Retail Sub Std Asset 3,576.95 - 3,576.95
Advances* - Retail Doubtful and Loss . 9,023.85 2,412.64 11,436.49
Advances*# - Wholesale Std 35,133.90 1,491.75 1,490.09 4,485.76 11,695.28 22,374.75 3,819.06 2,219.67 82,710.25
Advances* - Wholesale Sub Std 10,148.58 1,625.65 11,774.23
Advances* - Wholesale Doubtful and - 29,352.52 29,352.52
Investments - Fixed Deposits 1,500.00 1.47 1,501.47

Foreign Currency Assets

Foreign Currency Liabilities
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As on March 31, 2020

{&s. in Lakhs)

Particulars Upto 30/31 days |Over 1 month te 2| Over 2 months mogt‘;:jpto Over 6 months Over 1 year upto 3 Over 3 years Over 5 years Total
(one month) months upto 3 months upto 1 year years upto 5 years
6 months
Liabilities
Borrowings from banks
Working capital Demand Loans 15,570.82} - - - - - - 15,570.82
Bank Overdraft - - - - - - - - -
Long Term Loans - - - - 6,300.00 48,800.00 - - 55,100.00
Market borrowings 15,570.82 - - - 6,300.00 48,800.00 - - 70,670.82
Commercial Papers -
Non Convertible Debentures - 21,459.84 10,648.41 74,939.87 30,000.00 15,000.00 - - 152,048.12
Assets
Loans -
Advances* @ - Retail Std Asset 7,363.37 7,165,17 7,047.05 25,100.,92 40,447 40 105,762.93 37,929.43 9,328.96 240,145.24
Advances® - Retail Sub Std Assat - - “ - - - 3,779.40 328.69 4,108.08
Advances® - Retall Doubtful and Loss - - - - - - 8.49 8.49
Advances*# - Wholesale Std 24,109.46 1,647.99 1,657.10 7,365.00 11,356.94 31,084.19 7,263.17 1,791.81 86,275.67
Advarnices® - Wholesale Sub Std - - - - - - 6,359.88 779.67 7,139.55
Advances* - Wholesale Doubtful and - - - - - - ~ 6,475.41 6,475.41
Investments - Fixed Deposits - - - - - 1.00 - - 1.00

Foreign Currency Assets

Foreign Currency Liabilities
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Volkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021 {continued}

x. The Company has
Applicable

no disclosures to make in respett of the following items as the relevant items are either NIL or Not

Derivatives:

Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swaps

Notional Principal of Swap Agreements

Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements
Collateral required by the NBFC upon antering into swaps

Concentration of credit risk arisirg from the swaps

The fair value of the swap boask

Exchange Traded interest Rate Derivatives

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year
Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding as at March 31, 2018
Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly
Mark-to-market value of exctangs traded interest rate derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective™

Quantitative Disclosures

Derivative {Notional Principal Amaunt)
Marked to Market Positions

Credit Exposure

Unhedged Exposure

Securitisation:

No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisationtransactions

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of theSPVs sponsored

Total amount of exposures resainad by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
Amount of exposures o secutitisation transactionsother than MRR

Financial Assets sofd to Securstisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
Ne. of accounts

Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/ RC

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized . respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Assignment transactions underiaken

No. of accounts

Aggregate value {net of provis ons} of accounts sold to SC/ RC

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Details of non-performing finansial assets purchased
No. of accounts purchased during the year
Aggregate outstanding

Of these, number of accounts ~estructured during the year
Aggregate outstanding

Details of non-performing finaneial assets sold
No. of accounts sold

Aggregate outstanding

Aggregate consideration received

Exposure o Real
Estate Sector

Residential Mortgages
Commercial Real Estate
Investments in Mortgage Backed Sacurities {MBS) and other securitised exposures




Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other, securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares {including *Cs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of

Exposure to
Capital Market

equity-oriented mutual funds;
Advances for any other purposes wherg shares or cenvertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of

equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertibie
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented rmutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does

not fully cover the advances;
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and

market makers;
Loans sanctioned to corporates egainst the security of shares / bonds / debentures or sther secutities or on

clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds {both registered and unregistered)

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositars

Concentration of
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the NBFC

Deposits

During the year, there are no peralities levied by RBI / other regulators
During the year, Companys has not postponed revenue recognition on account of pending uncertainties

During the year, Companys has not made any draw down of reserves.
Company does not have any overseas joint venture / subsidiary.
There are no SPVs sponsorad by the Company

Other Disclosure

Disclosures required by paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-

42}
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in Annexure I.
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Votkswagen Finance Private Limited

ANNEXURE { FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2021

Schedule o the Balance Sheet of 2 Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company
{ss vequired in terms of Paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Firancial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Cormpany and Deposit
taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

{Al pmounts in Lakhs)
Liabilities Side
{1} iLoans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
Particulars Amount outstanding Amount overdus
{2} Debentures : Secured 15,732.33 -

: Unsecured - -

{other than falling within the meaning of public deposiis)#
{b} Deferred Credits - -
{c} Term Loans 48,800.00 -
{d} intercorporate loans and borrowing - -
{e) Commercial Paper - -
{f) Public Deposits# - -
{g} Other Loans - Working Capital Demand Loan 56,000.00 R -
- Bank Overdraft 17,450.00 -

# Refer to note 1 below
{2} iBreak-up of {1){f) above {Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) :

Particulars Amount outstanding Amount overdue

{a} In the form of Unsecured debentures - -
{b} in the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the - -

{c} Other public deposits . .

Asset Side

Amount Quistanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills recelvables [otaer than those included in (4)

& (belowh:
[ {a)Secured 180,364.33
{b} Unsecured™ 107,083.77

{4} Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

{1} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

{a) Financial lease N
{b) Operating lease 0.00

{11} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

{a) Assets on hire -
b} Repossessed Assets -

(i1} Other loans counting towards AFC activities

{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -
{b) Loans other than {a} above -
{5} IBreak-up of Investments :
Current investments:

1. Quoted
{i} Shares: (a) Equity -
{b) Preference -

{ii} Debentures and Bonds -
iti) Units of Mutual funds -
{iv} Government Securities -
{v} Others {please specify) . -

2. Unguoted
{1} Shares: {a) Equity
{b) Preference
{ii) Debentures and Bonds
(it} Units of Mutual funds -

{iv) Government Securities -

{v} Others (Certificate of Deposits, Commercial Paper & PTZ) -
* Exclugas zdvance income tax/tax deducted at source {net of provisions] end other advances (not related to lending activity)

{Break-up of Investments {continued)...




Amount Dutstanding

Lotg Term investments

1. Quoted

{i} Shares: (a) Equity -
{b) Preference N

{ii) Debentures and Bonds ! -

(i) Units of Mutual funds -

{iv) Government Securities -

{v) Others {please specify) -

2. Unguoted

{i} Shares: {a} Equity 8,514.71

{b) Preference - 505.00

{ii} Debentures and Bonds -

{ifi} Units of Mutual funds -

{iv) Government Securities -

{v) Others {please specify} -

Value of investments

1. Gross Value of Investment

inindia 8,018.71

Cutside India .

2. Provision for Investment -

inindia -

Outside India N

43, Net Value of Investment -

Inindia 8,018.71

Outside india .

{61 {Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2) and {3} above: [Refer note 2 below)

Category Amount net of provisions

JR——

Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties i
{a} Subsidiaries - - -
{b) Companies in the same group - -
{'c) Other related parties - - -

i 2. Other than related parties 180,364.33 107,083.77 287,448.10

Total 180,364.33 107,083.77 287,448.10

{7} linvestor group-wise classification of all investments {current and fang term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted}: {Refer note 3 below}

Category Market Value/ Break-up Book Value (Net of

or fair value or NAV Provisions)

1. Related Parties**

{a) Subsidiaries - -

{b} Companies in the same group - -

{c}) Other related parties - -

** As per Accounting Standard issued by ICAl {Refer note 3 below

2. Other than related parties -

Total -

{8} (Dther Information

Sarticulars Amount

{1} Gross Non Performing Assets
{a) Related Parties -

{b} Other than related parties 52,502.40

{if) Net Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related Parties -

{b} Other than related parties 21,470.04

il Assets acguired in satisfaction of debt 130,41

Notes:

1. As defired in point xxvii of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3. All Acceunting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICA! are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in
satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unguoted investments shall be disclosed
irrespeciive of whether they are classified as long term or current in {5} above,
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43}

44)

45}

45

Yotkswagen Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the yesr ended Mareh 31, 2021 {continued)

Disclosure pursuant to Circular No. DNBS.PD.CC.No 256 /03.10.42 / 2011-12 dated March 02, 2012 on Monitoring of frauds, the frauds detected and reported for the
year amounted to Rs. 341 Lakhs {Previous year Rs. 897.54 Lakhs).

The Company has a process whereby periodically ali long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed
and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/ accouting standards for material foreseeable losses on such fong term contracts has been made in
e books of accounts.

SEBI Disclosure

{a} initial Disclosure in terms of Para 4.1 of circular SEBI/HO/ODHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018

Particulars Details
Name of the company Volkswagen Finance Private
1 Lirmnited
CIN U65999MH2009FTC189640
, Outstanding borrowing of company as on March 31, 2021 {Rs. in fakhs) 137,982.33
Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the ICRA Limited - Al+ for Short
{4 [Credit Rating Agency Term Rating
‘ india Ratings and Research
Private Limited - IND A1+ Short
Term Rating & IND AAA/Stable
for Long Term Rating
Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of
shortfall in the required borrowing under the framework
5 BSE Limited
The Company confirms that it is a Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEB! circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated
November 26, 2018.
i) Disclosure under Regulation 53{e} of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
Debenture Trustees:
Vistra ITCL {India) Limited
The (L&FS Financial Centre,
Plot C- 22, G Block, 7th Floor
Bzndra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Musmbai 400051
Tel: 491 022 2659 3602
Email:_itclcomglianceofficer@vistra.com
Website: www. vistraitcl.com
{r} Disclosure under Regulation 53{f) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Reguiations, 2015

Related Party transactions

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. In Lakhs)

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries - -
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates - -
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which N .
Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary - N
{Refer Related party disclosure Note 33) - -

s
8,
s

Disclosure under Regulation 54(2} of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclesure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015
Asset cover

the Debentures are secured by way of a first and pari passu mortgage in favour of the Security Trustee on the Company’s immovable property of
Rs. 20.91 lakhs and further secured by way of hypothecation/mortgsge of chargad assets such as receivables arising out of auto loan.

3
S
et




sg O, s S
N P
Foall BNV SN 14
P GO L3484
LR IR mke\ww
ol B R .
m_\ o, y su;,« % G T,
TR gt ﬁwf%;%i\w A BRIy o DRSO
PR L SIS TR
swh A S e Aol lin 3@y SEOI Y
g e .
- . EIRTISHR @l a&%&%ﬁw&i}r
s g

iy ‘3
Vrepry - TGSy
o R - o »4&}‘4& Jz% ‘>

SN
"
p
=4
®
=

i :
fiei? A Tore B sun
5 13 s 5 57 P T N
ERNC WL [ELRPL m MKM delmwQ M»%ﬁ ww.& ww oA,
1 3 i
LIBLLOED SR NG LCUERD NG o m%w% TOL UL B R
A N
sEer) Badeul Mm o mf &%M«MMWW% Sy
LB TP Ry FFIEC HUTID S g0 f%y@aw,fs{x%a A HRIRY BB Jad

3
@%.%w, *
]

ey S0y spurdysa wsiysy &%ﬁw ﬁmwwm&
N

T
. xw —— e PEEREAY
N » 3
3 o L 7
;x\&(\:ﬂ m“ 3 %\mwtvzx; " o W
w T SRS ITEIBLI DA w0R#Y Boy ki Y
H i SPGB Pre b i

1)) B ompen ¥ §aod

P
;\\ LBUB R IR, B0l BT R 8 e, SAGE A O L0500 SRkt IPTE P e el S CHAIN

PUADURE [P KM o @ PUR AYIBART RU, 43 PRI 6 & AP Dug
i FLIREC 05 IBGS T8 SRHINGE B TP WAPUPE S UL W PG T Al A sy @ DB BRF REUIC ofDID BUS WAA D Bt Eh AT 55T
B ade FD0I BYT FEGY R 0] SUOILSSE PLr CTTRALSR el BROMBABE 1 i€y §7 15000 00 @ QUTIRR 1P IPSHGNG DUl LRERO L0 A0 BEGUA
WS BT PRIRFHAD (0 O TARYST W8 L MDIP TUASIRGG S0 B R B TR Wt D O
B 9 SRR BGRLREED. DIT DA GRALTY TR T T TRR0URg Aulnly, 2] IS
SR TR 10 Mes SV IR B AR et JatuBRtin Bl 380 1N By s 2000 VA BennBT R ALBMAINT BT 8RN 1
W, R, g

Gr Ao Pz oue

SRS e Bl WSS S F e R G DOLET Sde S0 S B AT CRE 1N i LD pasE]
R AN S S L o N R I TUL VL7 QECTIN (MERCENIL G S LT SHET V'

TO0C BIAMA L 8w R O0LT Ny (0 SRR 0 QL PRaR € st A @R id g

P A, B P WOADDSH ROCAPIR Y SR Gl 0 BRSNS

S50 OIS 1T U BRA UE INORE, Bl © OV N T aRTOR ol B gy ST oD, DY G5 U0 58 B

TBRABFGOS PP [0

MR ADpniag §F LUN0D

£
o
A
5
3
o~
~
X?
K
b4
%
o
)
el
4

FHE SO TR0 BERY Bl 2O 5 RETIIS ManT SHTPIFAG 0 ABAGIEL DOV AonTE RAD L8 PUNDAR SR 0 AP U 4 8 o SRR, B By
RS SRABANT B LRy WRDY [Z0T QU 16 006D TR By et o0 e Bl MR 5 AKEIMIT T Sl R SRIRREL FBES SBLDT s

9y

{PPTNURUOTY TROF "1 WABW PREVE SE0N 4 M) SIUOWIRIRIS (2ufiid SUCTEPUELS S41 O SR10N

BRI JPBRLIL IR USBRMSHIOA



